Military Funeral Honors—United States Air Force User Guide

Privacy Act Statement

This is documentation for a DOD web site. The security accreditation level of the site is classified as FOUO and below. Do not process, store, or transmit information classified above the accreditation level of the system. DOD web sites may be monitored for all lawful purposes, including to ensure their use is authorized, for management of the system, to facilitate protection against unauthorized access, and to verify security procedures, survivability, and operational security. Monitoring includes, but is not limited to, active attacks by authorized DOD entities to test or verify the security of this system. During monitoring, information may be examined, recorded, copied and used for authorized purposes. All information, including personal information, placed on or sent over this system may be monitored. Use of this DOD web site, authorized or unauthorized, constitutes consent to monitoring. Unauthorized use of the DOD web site may subject you to criminal prosecution. Evidence of unauthorized use collected during monitoring may be used for administrative, criminal, or other adverse action. Use of this system constitutes consent to monitoring for all lawful purposes.

Privacy Act Statement

Authority: 10 U.S.C. 3013, Secretary of the Army; Army Regulation 600-8-23, Standard Installation/Division Personnel System Database Management; and E.O. 9397 (SSN)

Principal Purpose: The Reserve Component Management System - Guard (RCMS-G) collects data verify eligibility for benefits, incentives, and to process and consolidate source data from multiple locations into usable information that serves as the source information for force structure-forecasting models, decision support applications, tools and reporting capabilities.

Routine Uses: None. This information will not be disclosed outside of the Department of Defense other than the "Blanket Routine Uses" as published in the Federal Register.

Disclosure: Providing the solicited information is voluntary; however, failure to provide this information may result in the Army National Guard being unable to process your request for education benefits, incentives, etc. Furnishing of the information solicited is voluntary; however, failure to provide this information may result in the Army National Guard being unable to process your request for education benefits, incentives, etc.

Registration Information

Why do we need your Social Security Number? Social Security Number (SSN), Date of Birth (DOB), and other verifiable data is gathered from enlistment records covered under blanket routine uses to authenticate who you are. Additional verifiable data fields can be modified to reflect updated information. Your SSN will be stored with your account and is shared with agencies and organizations involved in the benefits eligibility process and strength forecasting.

Is it safe?

Security during transmission is ensured using a 128-bit Secure Socket Layer (SSL) connection. This is the highest industry standard and establishes an encrypted session between your computer and RCMS-G site services. We use the same technology that other major companies operating on the World Wide Web (WWW) use to protect personal information and guard against identity theft. Look for the little yellow padlock at the bottom of your browser window to ensure that you have established a secure connection. There are no alternate means of registration as this is the most secure method of protecting your information.

Table Of Contents

1 What's New	9
2 MFH USAF Background	11
3 Logging in to MFH USAF	14
4 Requesting Access to MFH USAF	15
5 MFH USAF User Hierarchy	16
6 Navigation	17
6.1 Ribbon Toolbar	17
6.2 Mission Tasks Checklist	18
6.3 Mission Navigator	19
7 Search	20
8 Understanding Application Pages	21
8.1 Home Page	21
8.2 Mission Information Page	26
8.3 Add Participants Page	27
8.4 Scheduled Participants Page	
9 Processing a Military Funeral Honors Mission Request	29
9.1 Add a New Mission Request	29
9.1.1 New Mission Request with KnownSSN	29
9.1.2 New Mission Request with UnknownSSN	

9.2 Assign Locations	
9.3 Manage Participants	
9.3.1 Add Participants	
9.3.2 Assign Roles to Each Participant	40
9.3.3 Remove Participants from a Mission	42
9.3.4 Modify Participant Records	42
9.3.5 Add Travel Expenses	43
9.3.6 Schedule Training	45
9.4 Complete After Action Review	46
9.5 Complete Duty Records	48
9.5.1 Form 1164 (Travel Expenses)	
9.5.2 Form MFH Duty	
10 Duty Records	
10.1 Process Duty Records	54
10.1.1 Travel & Stipend	55
10.2 Archive Search	55
10.2.1 Search for and View Archived Duty Records by Missi	on55
10.2.2 Search for Archived Records by Participant	
10.2.3 Correct Archived Records	
10.3 DFAS Search	
10.4 Incomplete	

10.5 Dignified Arrival Duties	59
11 Management Center	61
11.1 Managing Funeral Homes	61
11.2 Managing Funeral Home POCs	64
11.3 Managing Transfer Locations	66
11.4 Managing Transfer Location POCs	69
11.5 Managing Cemeteries	70
11.6 Managing Cemetery POCs	72
11.7 Managing Training Sites	74
11.7.1 To Add New, Active or Re-Activate a Training Location	74
11.7.2 To Delete/Edit a Training Location	74
11.8 Managing the List of Participants	74
11.8.1 Add, Remove, or Restore Participants	75
11.8.2 Remove Existing Participants	76
11.8.3 Restore Participants Who Have Previously Been Removed	77
11.8.4 Add New Participants	78
11.8.4.1 Manual entry	78
11.8.4.2 Search in ARNG/USAR	80
11.8.5 Check/Edit Records	81
11.9 Manage Participant Teams	81
12 Reporting Center	

12.1 Roster Reports using Roster Builde	er
12.1.1 Setting Data Elements	83
12.1.2 Setting Filters and Criteria	
12.1.3 Generating the Report	
12.1.4 Navigation and Links	
12.1.5 Saving a Custom Report	
12.2 Transfer Missions	
12.3 Monthly Rollup	
12.4 Participants	94
12.4.1 Participant PEC Status Report	94
12.4.2 Recertification Due Report	
12.4.3 Participant PEC Details Report	t96
12.5 Attendance	
13 Training Center	
13.1 Schedule Training	
13.1.1 Locate an Existing Participant	
13.1.2 Add a New Participant	
13.1.3 Input Training	
13.1.4 Add New Training Site	
13.1.5 Add Travel Expenses	
13.2 Edit/Delete Existing Training Reco	[.] ds106

14 Help Center	
15 Calendar	
16 User Management Tool (UMT)	110
16.1 Requesting Access to MFH USAF	110
16.2 Accessing the User Management Tool	
16.3 Understanding MFH USAF User Roles	
16.4 Managing User Access	110
16.4.1 Granting a User Access	111
16.4.1.1 Applications for User.Name	112
16.4.2 Denying a User Access	112
16.5 User Management Tool Main Screen	
16.5.1 Profiles	114
16.5.2 Reporting	114
16.5.2.1 User Account Summary	115
16.5.2.2 User Permission Summary	
16.5.3 Application Statistics	115
16.6 View Details	116
16.6.1 Actions	117
16.6.2 Edit Permissions	118
16.6.3 Edit Profile	119

16.6.4 Action Histor	/	120
----------------------	---	-----

1 What's New

Version 2.1.0.0—Released 2012/04

New Features

- Transportation, by miles and vehicle type, can now be tracked using the After Action Review form. (See <u>Complete After Action Review</u>.)
- New reports are now available to USAF-level users.
 - **Participant Travel** report displays a summary of all participant travel as recorded in After Action Reviews.
 - **Issues Encountered** report displays a summary of all issues encountered while attempting to conduct or support missions, as recorded in After Action Reviews.
 - Honors by Status and Honors by Component reports display counts of missions organized by the military status or assigned component of the deceased.
- A mission summary report can be printed from the mission home page. Click the **Print** button in the Mission Info section. (The mission summary report is an automatically populated version of the AF 1946 form.)

Enhancements

- An **Aircraft Type** field has been added to the Dignified Arrival data entry screen—you can select either **Contract**, **Commercial**, **Military**, or **Unknown**.
- Location selection is now easier in the Assign Locations screen. Instead of selecting the location from a long drop-down list, you can type all or part of the name into a text box, and a filtered list of locations, with their respective addresses, appear in a selectable drop-down list. (See<u>Assign Locations</u>.)
- Participants added manually as unpaid, non-VSO participants can now be entered without a completed Social Security Number (SSN) through the Management Center, only the last four digits of their SSNs are required. (See<u>Adding Other (Army, Navy, Air Force, etc.) Unpaid Par-ticipants</u> on page 80.)
- The Check/Edit Records page has been enhanced to require only last four of participant SSN for search. Search for participants by last four SSN or select their names from a drop-down list to see their assigned missions. (See <u>Check Edit Records</u>.)

BETA Version—Released 2012/02

New Features

- A new copy of the application, called **MFH USAF**, is now available in a BETA version for testing. The application has been branded for the United States Air Force.
- The Calendar feature is now available to allow users to quickly see what missions are scheduled during any timeframe and navigate quickly to those missions. (See <u>Calendar</u>.)

Enhancements

• Honorable Transfers are now called Dignified Arrivals.

2 MFH USAF Background

As provided by law, an honor guard detail for the burial of an eligible veteran shall consist of no less than two members of the Armed Forces. One member of the detail shall be a representative of the parent Service of the deceased veteran. The honor detail will, at a minimum, perform a ceremony that includes the folding and presenting of the American flag to the next of kin, in addition to playing the official bugle call Taps.

Who Is Eligible For Military Funeral Honors?

- Military members on active duty or in the Selected Reserve
- Former military members who served on active duty and departed under conditions other than dishonorable
- Former military members who completed at least one term of enlistment or period of initial obligated service in the Selected Reserve and departed under conditions other than dishonorable
- Former military members discharged from the Selected Reserve due to a disability incurred or aggravated in the line of duty

What Is The Intent Of The Military Funeral Honors—United States Air Force (MFH USAF) Application?

MFH USAF is a web-based mission request and tracking tool developed to assist field users at the Site level in coordinating and managing the appropriate final tribute to eligible veterans, acknowledging their faithful and honorable service to the Nation. MFH provides Funeral Honors Coordinators with automated assistance to ensure that funeral honors are conducted with dignity and respect, meet the acceptable military standard, and are recorded as mandated, for proper payment disbursal. The release of the MFH USAF application is designed to ensure that each Site receives "credit" for the missions they conduct. The Site user inputs detailed information pertaining to the funeral honors request or "Mission", eligible "Participants", and their corresponding "Duty Record" detail for the purpose of ensuring that the data is reported to the Army for credit. This data transfer will occur automatically. MFH USAF has been designed to compliment and augment existing federal and local programs that provide this solemn and dignified ceremony to honor a deceased veteran at the time of burial. MFH USAF has modernized, integrated, and automated the process of requesting, planning, and performing a military funeral honors mission.

• The application provides a web-based mission request and tracking tool to coordinate the appropriate final tribute to eligible veterans, acknowledging their faithful and honorable service to the Nation

- The application provides Sites with automated assistance in order to coordinate MFH USAF and ensure that they are conducted as provided by law
- The ceremony consists of, at a minimum, the folding and presentation of the American flag and the sounding of TAPS by a detail of two uniformed members of the Armed Forces. At least one of the detail's members shall be from the parent service of the eligible veteran or retiree

What Are Some Of The Features Of The Military Funeral Honors—United States Air Force (MFH USAF) Application?

- Records and tracks all activities related to proper performance of Funeral Honors including training and payment
- Generates standardized reports, mandated by Congress, to document military funeral honors support for veterans
- Permits cross-referencing with the G1 Data Warehouse for Army personnel and provides DOD-approved forms/letters using Adobe Acrobat PDF
- Allows user to create and maintain duty records for all participants
- Provides a batch processing module to routinely share data with other components of the Army

"Mission Tasks" on the Mission Information Page provides links so you can:

- Collect Basic Mission Data (on deceased and honors)
- Assign Locations (for Funeral/Burial, with date and time)
- Manage Participants (and assign roles)
- Complete Duty Records (mission, training, travel, etc.)

Once all required information has been entered, the appropriate paperwork will be automatically prepopulated when generated. The forms currently available within the application are Standard Form 1164 Claim for Reimbursement for Expenditures on Official Business and The Joint Military Funeral Honors Record.

How Does The "Mission Tasks" List Work On The Mission Information Page?

The Mission Tasks panel summarizes the progress that has been made on completing mission tasks. Checkmarks (\checkmark) identify a mission task as being completed (all mandatory fields) and pointing fingers (\checkmark) identify a mission task as pending completion. Completed task items are denoted with a checkmark.



Each of the data entry pages that correspond to the mission task list includes several mandatory data fields. An asterisk (*) appears beside each mandatory field on these pages. When all mandatory information has been completed and saved, a checkmark will appear.

See <u>Mission Information Page</u> on page 26 for more information about how to complete all of these tasks from the Mission Information Page.

3 Logging In To MFH USAF

Users must have a valid Army Common Access Card (CAC) in order to apply for permission and access applications on the USAF Personnel Resources Intranet. The government has implemented this requirement as one of the numerous measures taken in order to safeguard sensitive information.

Users must first have an AKO/DKO account. If you do not already have an AKO/DKO account, go to <u>https://www.us.army.mil</u>, click **Register with a CAC**, and follow the log in and registration instructions. (For more detailed instructions from the AKO/DKO site itself, Army Personnel, see <u>AKO Account Registration</u>; DOD, non-Army Personnel see <u>DKO Account Registration</u>; other types of users, like con-tractors, will require a sponsored account, see <u>Sponsored/Guest Account Registration</u>.)

If you already have an AKO/DKO account, or after your new account is approved, navigate to https://arngg1.ngb.army.mil and follow the login instructions to log in with your CAC. **Tip:** If your login fails once, or if your session times out, you may get an error that says *Internet Explorer cannot display the webpage* when you navigate to the site. To reset your session, click **File** and select **New session**. If you cannot see the *File* menu, press **Alt** first. A new Internet Explorer window opens. Navigate to https://arngg1.ngb.army.mil in the new window that opens—you may have to copy and paste the link or type the address into the address bar to make sure the site opens in the new window and not any of the other Internet Explorer windows open on your desktop.

The first time you access the application, see <u>Requesting Access to an Application</u> for more information about how to request access to MFH USAF.

4 Requesting Access To MFH USAF

To request access to MFH USAF, click the MFH USAF main screen. Once there, click the **Request Access** button. Next, you will see a form asking what level of access you require and why. Then, click **Submit**. After the request for access has been submitted, the application administrators will review-and either approve or disapprove--the request.

You access to the application will depend on you user role, which is determined by your functional role and level of responsibility. If you are granted administrative privileges, you will be able to If they require access to the User Management tool, to approve other user's access requests. (To learn how to use the User Management Tool as an Administrator, see <u>User Management Tool</u>.)

5 MFH USAF User Hierarchy

When you are granted access to MFH USAF you are assigned a role which will give you access to certain functionality within the MFH USAF program.

USAF Funeral Honors Program Manager

- Grants access to USAF level personnel and Site Coordinators in each of the Sites.
- Views and queries access of all Sites' data.
- Reviews MFH USAF performance and policy compliance by Sites.

Site Funeral Honors Coordinator/Manager

- Grants specific user-level access to appropriate personnel in the Sites.
- Sets Site user levels needed to access and interface MFH USAF.
- Confirms completion of training and missions, and of submission for credit.
- Completes a Monthly Progress Report (electronically forwarded to USAF) summarizing briefings, accomplishments, problems, supply, equipment and vehicle expenses.
- Performs required actions for completion of missions within assigned Site, using MFH USAF application as the database of record.

Team Leaders/Regional Managers/Designated Representatives

• Enters, views, and updates mission and training data.

6 Navigation

There are two levels of navigation within MFH USAF. To move between tools, application pages, and missions, use the links on the Ribbon Toolbar. To navigate within a mission, use either the Mission Task Checklist or the Mission Navigator.

6.1 Ribbon Toolbar

You can navigate through MFH USAF using the links on the Ribbon Toolbar—the menu at the top of the application screen.

	2 🛛 🖉 👭 🖉 🗸 🗸	G1 Portal	MFHSiteUser Log Off
MFH USAF	Rucksack		
🚯 Home	된 Duty Records	🔹 🚰 Training Center 🔹	
Q Search	🔀 Management Center	🔹 🥑 Help Center 🔹	
📲 New Mission 🔹	Reporting Center	▼ Calendar	
	SITE		

The Ribbon Toolbar includes the following links.

- Home Page on page 21
- Search on page 20
- Add a New Mission Request on page 29
- Duty Records on page 54
- Management Center on page 61
- <u>Reporting Center</u> on page 82
- Training Center on page 99
- Help Center on page 108

Also, if you have authority to approve other user's access to MFH, you will see the User Management icon. See <u>User Management Tool</u> to learn about how to manage users.

6.2 Mission Tasks Checklist

The mission tasks checklist is a navigational tool available from within a Mission Information Page.



The Mission Tasks panel summarizes the progress that has been made on completing mission tasks. Checkmarks (\checkmark) identify a mission task as being completed (all mandatory fields) and pointing fingers (\sim) identify a mission task as pending completion.

Each of the following tasks is required to successfully complete a mission.

- **Collect Basic Mission Data:** In order to enter a new mission request, you will be required to collect basic mission data. (See <u>Add a New Mission Request</u> on page 29 for more information about how to create a new mission and collect this data.)
- Assign Locations: You must record the locations where funeral honors will be performed, to include the Funeral Home, Burial Site, and/or Dignified Arrival Location. See <u>Assign Locations</u> on page 34 for more information.
- Manage Participants: Participants will perform the military funeral honors. Each mission
 must be assigned the requisite number of participants to complete the funeral honors to be
 performed—and each participant must be assigned roles to perform for the mission. When
 you click this link, if there are no participants currently assigned to the mission, the Add Participants page will be displayed. (See <u>Add Participants Page</u> on page 27.) If, however, there is
 at least one participant assigned to the mission, the Scheduled Participants page will be displayed. (See <u>Scheduled Participants Page</u> on page 28.)
- After Action Review: After a mission is performed, an After Action Review must be completed. (See Complete After Action Review on page 46.)
- **Complete Duty Records:** Duty records must be completed for every participant who completes a mission. (See <u>Complete Duty Records</u> on page 48.)

6.3 Mission Navigator

The Mission Navigator is located in the top left-hand corner of all pages within a mission. It includes basic mission summary information, links to all the mission-related pages, and an option to delete/remove the mission.

Mission Navigator		
Dashboard	Profile Item	Profile Value
Request	SSN	
Locations Remove	Control #	VA1004070000
Participants	Name	
Add new	Request Date	4/5/2010 10:14:00 AM
AAR	Funeral Date	
DMDC status	Burial Date	4/20/2010 1:00:00 PM
Duty records	Credit	Conducted mission
	Service Type	Interment
	# of Participants assigned	1
	Roles Filled	No
	Taps Requested	Yes

- **Dashboard:** The Dashboard link opens the Mission Information page. (See <u>Mission Information Page</u> on page 26.)
- **Request:** Opens the Basic Mission Data page. You can modify the recorded information about the deceased.
- Locations: Opens the Locations page. (See Assign Locations on page 34.)
- **Remove:** Deletes the mission. Note that if payments are associated with a mission the mission cannot be deleted.
- **Participants:** Opens the Scheduled Participants page. (See <u>Scheduled Participants Page</u> on page 28.)
- Add New: Opens the Add Participants page. (See Add Participants on page 37.)
- **AAR:** Opens the Complete After Action Review page. (See <u>Complete After Action Review</u> on page 46.)
- DMDC Status: Opens the Check DMDC Processing Status page. (Not relevant for MFH USAF.)
- **Duty Records:** Opens the Complete Duty Records page. (See <u>Complete Duty Records</u> on page 48.)

7 Search

The Search menu option opens the **Search** page with tools to search for particular missions by SSN, Name, or Mission Control Number.



Tip: If you're looking for a group of missions, you can search by date range from the Home Page (See <u>Customize Date Range</u> on page 22 for more information.) This is an easy way to locate all recent missions without searching for each mission individually.

SSN Search

Enter the full social security number of the deceased and click **Search**. If the mission has already been entered the user will be taken directly to the Mission Information Page to view the details. Otherwise, a message stating "No records found" will be displayed.

Last Name Search

Enter the first two (or more) letters of deceased's last name and click **Search**. If multiple matches are found, click the Control Number beside the name of the deceased and you will be taken to the Mission Information page; if one match is found, you will be taken directly to the Mission Information page for the deceased.

Control Number Search

Enter the complete Control Number assigned to the mission you wish to locate **(format: STYYMMDD####)**. If the Control Number exists, the user will be taken directly to the Mission Information Page to view the details. Otherwise, a message stating "No records found" will be displayed.

8 Understanding Application Pages

There are several main pages that you will navigate through as you use MFH USAF.

Explore any of the following topics to learn more:

8.1 Home Page	21
8.2 Mission Information Page	26
8.3 Add Participants Page	27
8.4 Scheduled Participants Page	28

8.1 Home Page

The Home Page helps the user perform day-to-day activities by providing summary data on funeral honors missions. Users can perform searches, review mission activity, or drill-down to the details of a specific mission. Missions not visible upon opening the Home Page can be accessed by selecting a different date range using the Calendar, performing a name search for the deceased, or by simply clicking the Last Name Search button, which will result in a display of all missions.

E	SSN Search		ast Name Search	Control Number	arch	Customize C Open Pa	olumns nel	Calen Open/0	dar Close	Export to Excel
JNFINISHED BUSINESS Displaying missions between 20100601 and 20110701. Use the Calendar button to select a different date range.										
Last D Last D	MDC Upload: 20 MDC Results: 20	100517 100516			Order by: Coord	linator, Deceased Name 🏾	~			
	1								Demons	
	Coordinator	6/25/2011	VA1106160001	Deceased's Name	Funeral/Transfer Date	Burial Date	Participants	Roles Filled	Kemove	DMDC processed
		4/14/2011	VA1104140000				0		×	_
		3/3/2011	VA1103030000				1	+	×	-
		6/20/2011	VA1106200000			20110623 @ 2100	6	+	×	-
		6/16/2011	VA1106160000		20110618 @ 1000		5	+	×	-
		6/15/2010	VA1006150000		20100616 @ 0600	20100617 @ 0800	5	+	×	-
		6/14/2010	VA1006140000				3		×	-
	1									

From the Home Page you can view information and accomplish tasks.

Search for Missions

See <u>Search</u> on previous page for more information.

View Recent Updates to MFH USAF

Click the version number by the page title to open the What's New section of the documentation. See

- 21 -Document generated on: 5/2/2012 at 12:25 PM What's New on page 9 for more information. MILITARY FUNERAL HONORS <u>v2.0.0.0</u> As of: Wednesday, September 21, 2011 08:39:53 (ET)

Customize Mission Columns

You may customize columns for missions appearing on the Home Page.

1. Click Open Panel.

A panel displaying optional mission columns appears.

- 2. Select boxes to add columns and clear boxes to remove columns.
- Click the Refresh Grid button.
 The grid refreshes, displaying the selected columns for each mission.

Customize Date Range

You may customize the date range of displayed missions.

1. Click the **Open/Close** button.

The calendar tool opens.



Select a start and an end date on the calendars, and click GO.
 A list of all missions within that date range will be displayed.
 Tip: To automatically set the date range as the next two weeks from today, click the available button.

Export to Excel

To export the list of missions to Microsoft Excel, click the Export to Excel button.

Order by

Use the drop-down list to sort the missions by Request Date; Funeral Date; Burial Date; or Coordinator

- 22 -

Document generated on: 5/2/2012 at 12:25 PM

(and further by deceased's name.)

Order by: Request Date

View Unfinished Business

Click the Unfinished Business link to see a list of tasks that you must complete for missions. Each task name will have a count to view the list of missions you must work on.

MFH USAF tracks a variety of tasks that have been left incomplete. The Unfinished Business link on the home page will allow you to access a list of tasks that are awaiting attention.

To access these lists, click **Unfinished Business**. The list categories appear.



Note: The Unfinished Business list is updated every hour. The list displays the date and time of the last update. If you complete Unfinished Business tasks, the counts will **not** be immediately updated.

Select a category. Each category navigates to a screen where you can complete the selected unfinished business.

• MFH Duty Pay to process. Opens a list of all missions requiring that MFH Duty Pay be processed. Click the SSN to open the Funeral Honors Duty Details page for the Airman. (See <u>Com-</u> plete Duty Records on page 48.)

Search (by SSI	Participant's N, MFH Duty Pay C	Duty Records Compliant only)							
Order by SSN/NAME									
All Duties (Mission and Training)									
(Selection of "I	Mission duties" reve	als associated missions)							
SSN	Last Name	First Name							
		ALYSON							
		JONATHAN							
		JOHN							
		JAMES							
		BRUCE							
		SAM							
		DANNY							
		WILL							
		HEATHER							
		ANDREW							
		WILFRED							
		ORLANDO							
		JOSHUA							
		ALEXANDER							
		GUILLERMO							
		CREGG							
		RICHARD							
		SHIRLEE							
1 <u>2 3 4</u>									

• **1164 pay forms to process.** Opens a list of all missions requiring the completion of 1164 forms. Click the SSN to open the Funeral Honors Duty Details page for the Airman. (See <u>Complete Duty Records</u> on page 48.)



• FY Missions to complete. Opens a list of all incomplete missions in your Site. Click the Control Number to open the Mission Information Page. (See <u>Mission Information Page</u> on next page.)

12345678	<u>9 10</u>								
Coordinator	Request Date	Control Number	Deceased's Name	Funeral/Transfer Date	Burial Date	Participants	Roles Filled	Remove	DMDC processed
	3/15/2010		RUSSELL		4/12/2010 1:00:00 PM	0	False	×	
	3/26/2010		CLIFFO*		4/9/2010 2:30:00 PM	0	False	×	-
	4/6/2010		RICHARD		4/7/2010 1:00:00 PM	0	False	×	-
	4/7/2010		DILLMAN	4/10/2010 1:00:00 PM		0	False	×	-
	3/31/2010		JAMES		4/2/2010 10:30:00 AM	0	False	×	-
	3/30/2010		IRVING		4/6/2010 12:00:00 PM	0	False	×	-
	4/1/2010		JOHN	4/4/2010 4:00:00 PM		0	False	×	-
	4/8/2010		JOHN		4/9/2010 1:30:00 PM	0	False	×	-
	4/7/2010		DONALD S		4/9/2010 11:00:00 AM	0	False	×	-
	4/7/2010		ANTHONY C		4/8/2010 12:30:00 PM	0	False	×	-
	4/6/2010		IRVIN		4/7/2010 10:15:00 AM	0	False	×	-
	4/8/2010		RICHARD		4/9/2010 3:01:00 PM	0	False	×	-
	4/14/2010		LORAINE	4/17/2010 11:00:00 AM		0	False	×	-
	4/5/2010		KAZUO		4/8/2010 11:45:00 AM	0	False	×	-
	4/6/2010		MARIE		4/7/2010 9:01:00 AM	0	False	×	-
	4/7/2010		CARLOS		4/12/2010 1:30:00 PM	0	False	×	-
	4/12/2010		LESTER W		4/15/2010 2:00:00 PM	0	False	×	-
	4/8/2010	_	DAVID W		4/9/2010 11:00:00 AM	0	False	×	-
	4/9/2010		MICHAEL		4/19/2010 1:00:00 PM	0	False	×	-
_	4/12/2010	_	ROBERT E		4/16/2010 11:00:00 AM	0	False	×	-
2345678	9 10								

Tip: Click the column headers to sort the missions by column.

• **Conducted supported conversion.** Opens a list of all missions that were submitted for creditbut were not processed because another branch claimed the mission. If the mission was truly just supported by the United States Air Force, select the **Check** checkbox and click **Reset checked**. If you would like to negotiate with the other agency for credit, leave the checkbox cleared. After reviewing all missions, click the **Report Completion** button. All checked missions will no longer be sent for credit.

To find sta Select Yea Selec This operA TAKE A FEW	tus of cor r Type: t year: tion may / Minutes	npletion for your	missions: Fiscal resh				
THE MISSI	ons below ck on "Rep	WERE PREVIOUSLY S TO INDICATE "SUPP ORT COMPLETION" E	SUMBMITTED TO <u>DMDC</u> ORTED MISSION" IF SUTTON WHEN THE ENT	DE AS "PROVIDED". NECCESERY AND CLICI	PLEASE CHECK APPROPRIATE CHE < ON "RESET" BUTTON. DUE DATE : 4/15/2010 12:00:00 /	ck boxes	
	Check	Mission Control #	SSN	Name	Claimed by another branch		
				Samuel	C		
			_	Hugh			
				D.C.	A		
Reset checked Report Completion							

• Outstanding requests for access. displays the number of users who have requested access.

Access Missions

The home page contains a grid displaying an overview of mission details.

1	1									
	Coordinator	Request Date	Control Number	Deceased's Name	Funeral/Transfer Date	Burial Date	Participants	Roles Filled	Remove	DMDC processed
		6/14/2010	VA1006140000				3		<u>×</u>	-
		6/15/2010	VA1006150000		20100616 @ 0600	20100617 @ 0800	5	+	<u>×</u>	-
		3/3/2011	VA1103030000				1	+	<u>×</u>	-
		4/14/2011	VA1104140000				0		<u>×</u>	-
		6/16/2011	VA1106160000		20110618 @ 1000		5		×	-
Ī		6/25/2011	VA1106160001				0		<u>×</u>	-
1	1									

Click a **Control Number** to go to the Mission Information page for that record, where you can view and modify mission details, and complete mission tasks.

In the Roles Filled column, shaded boxes displaying a "minus" sign () indicate that a required role (flag presenter, bugler, etc.) has not been assigned to a participant. Boxes displaying a "plus" sign () indicate that all roles have been filled.

In the Remove column, click the \mathbf{x} to delete the mission. \mathbf{x} A confirmation screen opens.

Type the reason for removal, and click **Remove**.

8.2 Mission Information Page

The Mission Information Page is created when, having been notified of the death of an eligible service member, the MFH USAF user selects the New Mission link, enters the **Add New Mission Request** page, and **Collects Basic Mission Data.** The system will then assign a unique control number to the mission, and the information page is displayed.



The task list on the Mission Information Page facilitates each step of a new mission entry (although many of these "steps" can be performed from within other areas of the application as well.) The Mission, Funeral, and Cemetery panels summarize the mission information. (See <u>Mission Tasks Checklist</u> on page 18.)

Additionally, you can click the magnifying glass icon ($\overline{\mathbb{Q}}$) to add or edit information in the panel.

8.3 Add Participants Page

If no participants have been assigned, the Add Participants page opens when you click **Manage Par-ticipants** in the Mission Task List. This page displays the honors that have been requested in the mission so that the user knows which roles that will have to be assigned in order to provide the requested honors.

	Honors: Flag Folding and Presentation, Taps Mission Navigator Open/Close Help					
	Use Database Search Panel to Add Add a New Non System Participant					
	Database Search Panel					
Existing in MFH Database : 💿	Current Participants in KS 🖒 🔽 Teams: 🖒 🖉					
By Name(KS ARNG, MFH):	Rules of component assignment for ARNG:					
By SSN (ARNG,USAR)						
All participants listed in the table	below are being assigned to the Mission.					
Collector						
SSN (add roles, etc.) Last Name First Name UIC Unit Name Grade Roles Cancel						

8.4 Scheduled Participants Page

If at least one Participant has been assigned to a mission, when you click Manage Participants from the Mission Task list, the Scheduled Participants page opens.

Oper	/Close Help Mission Navigator Sch	eduled Pa	Deceas Contro Name: Honors	sed's SS I Numbe s Reques S [–] <i>click</i>	N: r: ited: <i>"Roles,</i> 1	Frainings,	TX090 I Flag Fo Expenses	211001 olding a	4 and Presentation, 1 ign each participant a	aps t least one role.	
Check for Removal	Create Duty Record	Last Name	First Name	UIC	Grade	Has Service	Has Component	Burial Assgn	#Roles	Edit Participant Info	Unpaid VSO Firing Team
	384027843	G	LUCAS	X75HD	E4	+	+	+	Team Leader,Flag Presentation	Roles, Trainings, Expenses	
	305929160	V	ROY	X75HD	E4	+	+	+	Flag Presentation,Bugler - Ceremonial	Roles,Trainings,Expenses	
	Remove checked Remove All Add Participant										

This page allows the user to complete several tasks, including:

- Add additional participants: Click Add Participant. (See Add Participants on page 37.)
- Assign roles to participants: Click Roles, Trainings, Expenses. (See <u>Assign Roles to Each Par-ticipant</u> on page 40.)
- Create and complete duty records: Click the Participant's SSN in the **Create Duty** Record column. (See <u>Duty Records</u> on page 54.)
- Remove participant records: See <u>Remove Participants from a Mission</u> on page 42.
- Schedule participant training: Click Roles, Trainings, Expenses. (See <u>Schedule Training</u> on page 45.)
- Add travel expense information: Click **Roles, Trainings, Expenses**. (See <u>Add Travel Expenses</u> on page 43.)

9 Processing A Military Funeral Honors Mission Request

When notified of the death of an eligible service member, the Site MFH USAF user must create a Mission Request, which is then processed through the application. Several tasks must be completed to complete the record of the funeral honors.

9.1 Add a New Mission Request	29
9.2 Assign Locations	34
9.3 Manage Participants	36
9.4 Complete After Action Review	46
9.5 Complete Duty Records	48

9.1 Add A New Mission Request

There are two ways to add a new mission request: with a known or unknown SSN. Explore any of the following topics to learn more:

9.1.1 New Mission Request with KnownSSN	29
9.1.2 New Mission Request with UnknownSSN	32

9.1.1 New Mission Request With KnownSSN

Use this process if you know the Social Security Number (SSN) of the deceased.

1. Click New Mission in the Ribbon Toolbar and select Using 'Known' SSN.

|--|

Deceased's Information (R	ED ASTERISKS DENOTE REQUIRED INPUT)
CON- XXXXXXXX	
*Last:	*First: Middle: Suffix: 🗸
Address1(widow/widower/)	NOK): Address2:
City:	State: TX 💌 Zin:
*Parent Service / Component	: 🗡 *Grade: 🗡 *Status: 🗡

Note: If the SSN is found in the database, the name and demographic information are automatically populated. If the SSN is not found in the database, these fields are blank.

Complete all required fields, and optional fields as desired.
 Tip: Press the Tab key to move from field to field.
 Tip: All required fields are flagged with an asterisk (*).



3. Complete all required fields, and optional fields as desired, for the Coordinator Information.

• **Request Date:**The Request Date is automatically populated with the current date. However, if this is incorrect (request date has passed) the user must type the correct date into the text box (using the YYYYMMDD format) or click the calendar link and select the correct date.

Note: When the user enters the locations and scheduling information for funeral, burial, or memorial honors performed, the application will require these to occur after the request date.

- **Time:** Time the request was received is automatically populated at 00:00. Use the hour and minute drop-down lists to edit.
- **Referrer:** CAC is automatically populated in the Referrer drop-down. Use the dropdown list to make a different selection.
- **Service:** Select the most appropriate choice from the drop-down list to indicate the location where funeral honors will take place.

*Service :	•	
	Chapel and Interment	
	Interment	
	Chapel	
	Burial at Sea	
Eirina P	Memorial	
_	Entombment	
Elvoyor		

Note: Since *Funeral* is the term that is compliant with requirements, when the user enters locations, one must be entered in the area of the screen labeled *Funeral Home*.

• Honors Requested: Check the honors that have been requested for the mission. Playing of the official bugle call Taps is required to qualify for mission credit, and is automatically populated with a checkmark. However, if the family has declined the playing of Taps, you may clear the checkbox for this honor and indicate the reason in the Special Requests/Comments box. Select any other honors requested, and enter any special requests or comments in the text box.

4. Click Save.

The new mission is saved. The Mission Information Page opens with a checkmark beside the Collect Basic Mission Data Mission Task.

9.1.2 New Mission Request With UnknownSSN

Use this process if you know the Social Security Number (SSN) of the deceased.

- 1. Click **New Mission** in the Ribbon Toolbar and select **Using 'Unknown' SSN**. The Create a New Mission screen appears.
- 2. Type the SSN of the deceased in the SSN box, and click the Retrieve data button.
 Retrieve data

The Deceased Information entry panel opens.

Deceased's Information (re	D ASTERISKS DENOTE REQUIRED INPUT)
SSN: XXXXXXXXX	
*Last:	*First: Middle: Suffix: V
Address1(widow/widower/N	IK): Address2:
City:	State: TX 💌 Zip:
*Parent Service / Component:	👻 *Grade: 💌 *Status: 🔍

Note: If the SSN is found in the database, the name and demographic information are automatically populated. If the SSN is not found in the database, these fields are blank.

Complete all required fields, and optional fields as desired.
 Tip: Press the Tab key to move from field to field.
 Tip: All required fields are flagged with an asterisk (*).



4. Complete all required fields, and optional fields as desired, for the Coordinator Information.

• **Request Date:**The Request Date is automatically populated with the current date. However, if this is incorrect (request date has passed) the user must type the correct date into the text box (using the YYYYMMDD format) or click the calendar link and select the correct date.

Note: When the user enters the locations and scheduling information for funeral, burial, or memorial honors performed, the application will require these to occur after the request date.

- **Time:** Time the request was received is automatically populated at 00:00. Use the hour and minute drop-down lists to edit.
- **Referrer:** CAC is automatically populated in the Referrer drop-down. Use the dropdown list to make a different selection.
- **Service:** Select the most appropriate choice from the drop-down list to indicate the location where funeral honors will take place.

*Service :	•	
	Chapel and Interment	
	Interment	
	Chapel	
	Burial at Sea	
🗌 Firina P	Memorial	
_	Entombment	
Elvoyor		

Note: Since *Funeral* is the term that is compliant with requirements, when the user enters locations, one must be entered in the area of the screen labeled *Funeral Home*.

• Honors Requested: Check the honors that have been requested for the mission. Playing of the official bugle call Taps is required to qualify for mission credit, and is automatically populated with a checkmark. However, if the family has declined the playing of Taps, you may clear the checkbox for this honor and indicate the reason in the Special Requests/Comments box. Select any other honors requested, and enter any special requests or comments in the text box.

5. Click Save.

The new mission is saved. The Mission Information Page opens with a checkmark beside the Collect Basic Mission Data Mission Task.

9.2 Assign Locations

For each mission, the location of the Funeral Home, Burial Service, or other funeral honors memorial service location must be entered. A Point of Contact, or POC, must be defined. Also, the date and time of the event must be recorded. Click Assign Locations in the Mission Tasks list to complete this task. The Mission Locations page opens.

Mission Navigator	SITE ***	*** TEST SITE ***	*** TEST SITE ***	
Save This Page	Funeral Home * Chapel Interment * Burial at © Select from list: ○ Add a new funeral	Sea * Memorial * Entombment ome		
		*Name: State: Address(1): Address City: Zip: Phone: Website:	Vigna v (2): Map Link Ø	
		POINT OF CONTACT INFORMATION Select POC: Last Name: Phone: - - Cell: - - e-mai	t send	
	SCHEDULING INF *Date:	Starting Time: 00 • 00 •	Duration: 2 Hours 🖌	

Depending on the mission requirements, either one or both of the available tabs on this page will require data entry:

- Funeral Home * Chapel: refers to the location where funeral honors are conducted
- Internment * Burial at Sea * Memorial * Entombment: refers to a second location.

On each tab, drop-down lists display the list of existing locations. However, the user may add new locations at any time.

Define a Funeral Home or Chapel Location

1. Click the **Funeral Home * Chapel** tab.

- Begin typing a location name in the Select from list box.
 A list of locations with the name as typed appears, displaying the complete name and address of the location.
- Select the correct location from the filtered list. Location information automatically populates.
 Tip: Click the Map Link button () to display a MapQuest map of the location.
 Tip: If you need to add a new location to the list, follow the instructions in <u>Assign Locations</u> on previous page.
- 4. If available, select a POC (Point of Contact) from the **Select POC** drop-down list. Otherwise, click **Click to Enter a POC**, and then enter name, phone number, and email address for the appropriate POC, and click the **Save New POC** button.
- In the Date field, click the calendar and select a date or enter the date by typing it in YYYYMMDD format.
 - Note: This date must be after the Request Date you previously entered.
- 6. Select the **Starting Time** from the drop-down list.
- Select the Duration from the drop-down list.
 Note: The duration of the honors performed must be at least 2 hours (one hour at two locations or two hours at one location.)
- 8. Click Save This Page.

Define an Internment, Burial at Sea, Memorial, or Entombment Location

- 1. Click the Internment * Burial at Sea * Memorial * Entombment tab.
- 2. Select a **Cemetery Type** from the drop-down list.
- Begin typing a location name in the Select from list box.
 A list of locations with the name as typed appears, displaying the complete name and address of the location.
- 4. Select the correct location from the filtered list. Location information automatically populates.

Tip: Click the Map Link button () to display a MapQuest map of the location.

Tip: If you need to add a new location to the list, follow the instructions in <u>Assign Locations</u> on previous page.

- 5. If available, select a POC (Point of Contact) from the **Select POC** drop-down list. Otherwise, click **Click to Enter and Save a POC**, and then enter name, phone number, and email address for the appropriate POC, and click the **Save New POC** button.
- In the Date field, click the calendar and select a date or enter the date by typing it in YYYYMMDD format.

Note: This date must be after the **Request Date** you previously entered.

7. Select the **Starting Time** from the drop-down list.

- Select the Duration from the drop-down list.
 Note: The duration of the honors performed must be at least 2 hours (one hour at two locations or two hours at one location.)
- 9. Click Save This Page.

Add a New Site to Site list

1. Select a **Type**.

Note: The Type defaults to Private, but other types of cemeteries are available, if necessary.

- 2. Enter the name of location.
- 3. Add Address, Phone Number and Website information for the location.
- 4. Click the **Save New Location** button.

9.3 Manage Participants

Every mission must be assigned participants who will complete the honors requested for the funeral. In order to manage and record the assignment of these participants, you can complete several tasks.

In order for this task to be marked as complete,

- At least two participants must be assigned to a conducted mission
- At least one participant must be assigned to a supported mission
- All participants must have assigned roles
- If flag folding is requested, at least two participants must be assigned to it.
- All participants should be assigned to the home or cemetery

Explore any of the following topics to learn more:

9.3.1 Add Participants	37
9.3.2 Assign Roles to Each Participant	40
9.3.3 Remove Participants from a Mission	42
9.3.4 Modify Participant Records	42
9.3.5 Add Travel Expenses	43
9.3.6 Schedule Training	45
9.3.1 Add Participants

For each mission, at least two participants must be selected when the honors are conducted (not just supported) by USAF. All participants must also be assigned roles, and enough participants must be assigned to complete the honors requested in the mission.

1. From the Mission Tasks Checklist, click Manage Participants.

The Add Partio	cipan	ts page opens.									
		Honors: Flag Folding and Presentation, Mission Navigator	Taps Open/Close Help								
		• Use Database Search Panel to Add	Add a New Non System Participant								
Database Search Panel											
Existing in MFH Databas	;e:⊙	Current Participants in KS 🖙	Teams: 🔿 🕵								
By Name(KS ARNG, MFH)	0	Rules of component assignmen	t for ARNG:								
By SSN (ARNG,USAR)	0										
All participants listed in	the table	below are being assigned to the Mission.									
		Colle	ector								
			•								
		SSN (add roles, etc.) Last Name Fir	st Name <mark>UICUnit NameGrade</mark> Roles								
		Car	ncel								

Note: If a participant has already been added to the mission, the Scheduled Participants page opens. Simply click **Add Participant** to open the Add Participants page.

- 2. Add participants through any of the available methods:
 - Add from MFH USAF Database List
 - 1. Make sure the **Use Database Search Panel to Add** radio button is selected.
 - 2. Click the Existing in MFH Database radio button.
 - A **Current Participants** drop-down list appears on the right.
 - 3. Select a participant from the Current Participants drop-down list. The Airman is added to the list of participants.
 - Add Team of Participants
 - 1. Make sure the **Use Database Search Panel to Add** radio button is selected.
 - 2. Click the Existing in MFH Database radio button.
 - 3. Click Teams.

A list of teams appears.

4. Select the desired team.

The Team is added to the list of participants.

- Add anAirman from the G1 Database by Searching by Name
 - 1. Make sure the **Use Database Search Panel to Add** radio button is selected.
 - 2. Click the **By Name** radio button on the left side of the page.
 - 3. Type the first two (2) or more characters of the participant's last name into the text box and click the **GO** button.

The first ten names matching your criteria—In the United States Air Force and Existing Participants—will be displayed. If there are page numbers at the bottom of the list, you may click them to page through the list of names.

4. Click the correct name.

The Airman is added to the list of participants.

Tip: Click the **Close** button to return to the full search box.

- Add anAirman from the G1 Database by Searching by SSN
 - 1. Make sure the **Use Database Search Panel to Add** radio button is selected.
 - 2. Click the **By SSN** radio button on the left side of the page.
 - 3. Enter the full nine-digit SSN (without dashes) in the SSN box and click the **Go** button.

If the record is found, the Airman is added to the list of participants.

• Adding a New Paid Participant

PAID										
VSO or Author	ized Provider									
O Retirees (Army, Navy, Air Force, Marine Corps,Coast Guard)										
Select Organization (VSO/Authorized providers)	Organiz	ation Name							
	×									
Paid PARTICIPANT										
SSN	Last Name	First Nam	e	Middle Name						
Address1	Address2		City	ZIP						
Add Paid Particip	ant									

- Click the Add a New Non System Participant button at the top of the page.
- 2. Click Paid.
- 3. Use the radio button to select one of the two provider categories (VSO/Authorized or Retirees.)
- If VSO/Authorized Provider was selected, use the Select Organization drop-down list to select the organization of the participant, and if desired type the organization name (for example: Post 1234.)
 Or, if Retiree was selected, use the Service drop-down list to select the branch of service from which the participant retired.
- 5. Type a participant SSN, Name and address in the appropriate text boxes.
- 6. Click Add Paid Participant.

The Airman is added to the list of participants.

• Adding a New "Unpaid" Participant

UNPAID											
VSO or Author	ized Provider										
O Other (Army, Navy, Air Force, Marine Corps,Coast Guard)											
Select Organization			Organization Name	2							
	~										
Unpaid PARTICIPANT											
(SSN and Last Name for VSO/Authorized Provider will be replaced with system generated identifier and label where incorrect/incomplete. Address is optional.)											
SSN	Last Name		First Name	Middle	Name						
******	*****										
Address1		Address2		City		ZIP					
Add Unpaid Partici	Add Unpaid Participant										

- 1. Click the Add a New Non System Participant button at the top of the page.
- 2. Click Unpaid.
- 3. Use the radio button to select one of the two provider categories (VSO/Authorized or Other.)
- 4. If VSO/Authorized Provider was selected, use the Select Organization drop-down list to select the organization of the participant and if desired, type in the organization name (for example: Post 1234.) Note: If no additional information is entered and user clicks Add Unpaid Participant, a unique nine character identification number will be generated to track the participant. The MFH USAF application will use the Organization Name for tracking (example: VFW**Post 1234) wherever a participant's name would ordinarily be displayed.

Or, If Other (Army, Navy, Air Force, Marine Corps, Coast Guard) was selected, use the **Service** drop-down list to select the Service. You must then type in the participant's SSN and last name.

Tip: If you only have access to the last four digits of the participant's SSN, you can enter the participant from the Management Center. (See Manual entry.)

5. Click Add New Participant.

The Airman is added to the list of participants.

9.3.2 Assign Roles To Each Participant

1. From the Add Participants page, click a Participant's SSN in the Collector. The Participant's details open.

	Collector
SSN (a	ld roles, etc.) Last Name First Name UIC Unit Name Grade Roles
Selected Soldier: Home State: TX Unit State:	
Unit of Assignment:	UIC Grade
BTRY A 4TH BN 133D	A PM0A0 E4
Service/VSO	Component/VSO Organization
🔍 Army	✓ National Guard Federal Status ✓
~	<select (add)="" role<="" td=""></select>
🗹 Assign to Funeral Home	/Transfer Ceremony
Assign to Cemetery Cer	amony Save Record

2. Confirm that all information is complete and accurate (Unit of Assignment, UIC, Grade, where applicable; Service/VSO; Component/VSO Organization).

Note: For a participant to get paid you must select one of the VSO organizations (if participant is a VSO member) OR Army as the component and USAF Federal Status as the service.

3. Select or add a role using the drop-down list.

When the page refreshes, your selection will be listed to the right of the drop-down list.

Flag Presentation	•	<select (add)="" role<="" th=""><th>Flag Presentation,</th><th>×</th></select>	Flag Presentation,	×
Unassigned	٠	Coromonu		
Team Leader		ceremony		
Flag Presentation		emony		
Pallbearer				
Firing Party				
Chaplain				
Bugler - Live				
Bugler - Ceremonial				
Bugler - CD				
Flyover				
Other	•			

Note: TAPS must be included in the selected honors and the role assigned to a participant in order to receive credit for the mission. Unless the deceased's family declines this honor (and you de-select TAPS when filling out the "Honors Requested") you will receive a reminder ("TAPS has not been assigned") when you are in the process of assigning roles to scheduled participants.)

4. If the participant is to serve more than one role (e.g., Team Leader and Flag Presentation), you may click the drop down again and select an additional role.

Tip: To remove assigned roles, click the **Remove** button.

 Click the appropriate check boxes to Assign to Funeral Home... and/or Assign to Cemetery.... 6. Click the Save Record button.

The Participant details close and the Database Search Panel opens again.

Repeat for each Participant.
 Note: When all Assigned Participants have been given roles, the Scheduled Participants page will open, providing the user with mission information, editing capabilities, and links to pages used to Create Duty Record and enter Training/Expenses information. (See <u>Scheduled</u> Participants Page on page 28 for more information.)

9.3.3 Remove Participants From A Mission

1. From the Mission Tasks Checklist, click **Manage Participants**. The Scheduled Participants page opens.

Oper	Open/Close Help Deceased's SSN: Mission Control Number: Navigator Name: Honors Requested: Name:							TX0902110014 I Flag Folding and Presentation, Taps					
Scheduled Participants - click "Roles, Trainings, Expenses" to assign each participant at least one role.													
Check for Removal	Create Duty Record	Last Name	First Name	UIC	Grade	Has Service	Has Component	Burial Assgn	*Roles	Edit Participant Info	Unpaid VSO Firing Team		
	384027843	G	LUCAS	X75HD	E4	+	+	+	Team Leader,Flag Presentation	Roles, Trainings, Expenses			
	305929160	Y	ROY	X75HD	E4	+	+	+	Flag Presentation,Bugler - Ceremonial	Roles, Trainings, Expenses			
			Remov	e check	ed	Rem	ove All	Α	dd Participant				

Note: If the Add Participants page opens, the selected mission has no assigned participants, and thus no participants can be removed from the mission.

- 2. Select the **Check for Removal** checkbox on the rows of all participants to be deleted.
- 3. Click the **Remove Checked** button.

The selected Participants are deleted from the mission.

Tip: Delete all participants by clicking the Remove All button.

9.3.4 Modify Participant Records

1. From the Mission Tasks Checklist, click Manage Participants.

The Scheduled Participants page opens.

Open/Close Help Deceased's SSN: Mission Navigator Control Number: Name: Honors Requested:							TX090 I Flag F	TX0902110014 I Flag Folding and Presentation, Taps					
Scheduled Participants - click "Roles, Trainings, Expenses" to assign each participant at least one role.													
Check for Removal	Create Duty Record	Last Name	First Name	UIC	Grade	Has Service	Has Component	Burial Assgn	*Roles	Edit Participant Info	Unpaid VSO Firing Team		
	384027843	G	LUCAS	X75HD	E4	+	+	+	Team Leader,Flag Presentation	Roles, Trainings, Expenses			
	305929160	V	ROY	X7 5HD	E4	+	+	+	Flag Presentation,Bugler - Ceremonial	Roles,Trainings,Expenses			
			Remov	e check	ed	Rem	ove All		dd Participant				

Note: If the Add Participants page opens, the selected mission has no assigned participants,

and thus no changes can be made to participant records.

2. Click Roles, Trainings, Expenses.

SSN:										
Last Name First Name Middle Name Unit of Assignment: UIC Grade										
OSBALDO BTRY A 1-144TH FA PCEA0 01										
Address1 Address2 City ZIP Service/VSO Component/VSO Organization										
National Guard Federal Status 💟										
Assign to Funeral Home/Transfer Ceremony SAVE (Update Record)										

- 3. Make any changes to the available fields.
- 4. Click Save.

9.3.5 Add Travel Expenses

1. From the Mission Tasks Checklist, click Manage Participants.

The Scheduled Participants page opens.

Open/Close Help Deceased's SSN: Mission Control Number: Name: Honors Requested:						TX0902110014 I Flag Folding and Presentation, Taps						
Scheduled Participants - click "Roles, Trainings, Expenses" to assign each participant at least one role.												
Check for Removal	Create Duty Record	Last Name	First Name	UIC	Grade	Has Service	Has Component	Burial Assgn	*Roles	Edit Participant Info	Unpaid VSO Firing Team	
	384027843	G	LUCAS	X75HD	E4	+	+	+	Team Leader,Flag Presentation	Roles, Trainings, Expenses		
	305929160	V	ROY	X75HD	E4	+	+	+	Flag Presentation,Bugler - Ceremonial	Roles, Trainings, Expenses		
			Remov	e check	ed	Rem	ove All	A	dd Participant			

Note: If the Add Participants page opens, the selected mission has no assigned participants, and thus no travel expenses can be added for participants. (See <u>Add Participants</u>.)

2. Click Roles, Trainings, Expenses.

	Ceremony Performed in H P Honors Requested : Flag Funeral Date: 12/8/2009 Funeral Location: Entered	ionor of: Folding and Present d pen/Close Help	ation, Taps, I	Firing Party	₩	Mission Navigator				
		SSN:								
Last Name	First Name	Middle Name		Unit of Assignment:		UIC	Grade			
	OSBALDO			BTRY A 1-144TH FA		PCEA0	01			
Address1	Address2	City	ZIP	Service/VSO		Component/VSC) Organization			
				🔍 Army	~	National Guard Fe	ederal Status 🔽			
SAVE (Update Record)										

3. Click Add Travel Expenses.

The "Travel Panel" is displayed.

Funeral and Burial This Related Travels													
Delete Travel From	Travel To	Miles	\$\$ Travel	\$\$ Fare/Toll	\$\$ Misc	Expense Date	Paid Edit \$\$ Total						
Travels on Burial date	2/13/2009												
FROM (city/state):		TO (city/s	state):	т	otal Miles:								
					\$\$ per (mile: 0.5500							
FARES/TOLLS (\$\$):	MISC. (\$\$):		Total Expense		Save	ravel Record	1						
							Close Travel Pan						

- Enter From and To travel locations, and enter the appropriate miles traveled.
 Note: Even if there is no reimbursable travel, you must fill out this form. You may input zero miles, if necessary.
- 5. Enter any Fares/Tolls and Miscellaneous Expenses in the appropriate boxes.
- 6. Click the **Save Travel Record** button to save the information or click the **Close Travel Panel** button to close the panel without saving any changes.

The total expenses are calculated and displayed above the form.

	Iravel Record												
Delete	Travel From	Travel To	Miles	\$\$ Travel	\$\$ Fare/Toll	\$\$ Misc	Expense Date	Paid	Edit	\$\$ Total			
×	Alexandria	Arlington VA	22	10.67	15.20	0.00	12/15/2006	NO	Edit	25.87			
×	Alexandria	Chantilly VA	36	17.46	17.25	0.00	1/25/2007	NO	Edit	34.71			

7. If the expenses are incorrect, click the **Delete** link beside the expense. The expense is deleted and you may begin again.

Or, if the expenses are correct, and you wish to add training information, click **Close Travel Panel** button. The Travel panel closes and you may then click **Schedule Training**.

Or, if the expenses are correct, and you have no other work to do, click **Done**. You will be returned to the "Schedule Participants" page.

9.3.6 Schedule Training

From a mission you can schedule participant training associated with a mission.

Tip: To schedule training that is NOT associated with a mission, click the Training Center link on the Ribbon Toolbar and follow the instructions associated with Training.

1. From the Mission Tasks Checklist, click Manage Participants.

The Scheduled Participants page opens.

Oper	n/Close Help Mission Navigator		Deceas Contro Name: Honors	sed's SS l Numbe s Reques	N: r: ited:		TX090 I Flag F	211001 olding a	4 and Presentation, 1	aps	
	Scheduled Participants - click "Roles, Trainings, Expenses" to assign each participant at least one role.										
Check for Removal	Create Duty Record	Last Name	First Name	UIC	Grade	Has Service	Has Component	Burial Assgn	*Roles	Edit Participant Info	Unpaid VSO Firing Team
	384027843	G	LUCAS	X75HD	E4	+	+	+	Team Leader,Flag Presentation	Roles, Trainings, Expenses	
	305929160	Y	ROY	X75HD	E4	+	+	+	Flag Presentation,Bugler - Ceremonial	Roles, Trainings, Expenses	
Remove checked Remove All Add Participant											

Note: If the Add Participants page opens, the selected mission has no assigned participants, and thus no travel expenses can be added for participants.

- 2. Click Roles, Trainings, Expenses.
 - Click Schedule Training.

The Training Center is displayed.

TRAINING SCHEDULE:									
Select Training Location State:	TX 🔺 and Name	~	Add New Site						
Address line 1	Address line 2	Commen	ts:						
			<u>~</u>						
City	ZIP								
		Map Link							
Training Date (use calendar)	Training Time Duration (Hrs.)								
	≞	SAV	E Exit this page						
For multiple trainings select new date and/or new training location and click SAVE.									

 Select an existing training site from the Name drop-down list. Name and Address information for the selected training location are automatically populated.

Tip: If your training location is not listed, click **Add New Site.** See <u>Add New Training Site</u> on page 104 for information on how to proceed.

4. Select a date for training by clicking the calendar icon. After the calendar is displayed, click the date for training.

The calendar closes and the date is entered in the Training Date box.

- 5. Use the Training Time Duration drop-down list to select the duration of the training.
- 6. Click **Save**.

The training information will then be displayed in a box at the bottom of the page. **Tip:** If the information is incorrect, click **Remove.** The training information will be deleted and you may re-enter it.

- 7. To add travel and/or miscellaneous expenses for the training, click **Add Travel Expenses.**The Travel Panel is displayed.
- 8. Click Travel From...To.
- 9. Enter city and state of the travel origin and destination in the Travel From and Travel To fields.

Note: The Travel From and Travel To fields are mandatory.

- Enter the number of miles traveled.
 Tip: Number of miles may be entered as zero (0), if the expense is for fares, tolls, or miscellaneous as opposed to mileage. The city and state names and a mileage entry are mandatory in order to process a payment.
- 11. Click **Save** to save the information.
- 12. Repeat this process for every training date to be scheduled.
- 13. After added all of the training dates for a participant, click **Exit this Page**.

9.4 Complete After Action Review

Refers to the task associated with conducting and recording an After Action Review following the completion of a mission.

1. From the Mission Tasks Summary, click **After Action Review**. The After Action Review page opens.

Conducted	
○ Supported	
O Not supported	
*** TECT CITE ***	2
Please identify any issues encountered while attempting to conduct/support this mission.	
Accident	
Conducted/supported by another service	
Distance too far	
Inclement weather	
Insufficient notification time	
🗌 Late arrival	I
Miscommunication of directions / time	
Multiple funerals at the same time	
🗌 No funds available	
Other transportation issue	
Parent service not available	
Problems with electronic bugle, CD, CD player, bugler	2
Trained manpower not available	
Unable to find location in time for event	
🗌 Unable to meet minimum grade requirement	
Unable to provide required honors	
Unable to provide sufficient equipment	
***. TEOT.OITE *** *** TEOT	-
Comments / Support provided (optional)	1
ie ske ske	3
×	
Note: if a participant is listed, but did not perform the identified duties, you must so to Marson Deuticipants	
and update their record before completing the AAR.	
SSN Rank Last Name First Name Transportation Total Distance Roles	
xxx-xx- Bugler - Live	
XXX-XX-EF8 F8 Unknown - Pallbearer	
Mark AAK as complete 🔮	
Save	

- 2. Record whether the mission was conducted or supported by USAF.
- 3. Select any of the available check boxes to indicate any issues encountered while performing the mission.

- 4. Optionally, record any comments.
- 5. Record participant transportation. Select the type of transportation, either POV or GSA, or whether the participant was a passenger in another participant's vehicle. Also, record the number of miles the vehicle traveled.

Tip: If a participant drove to multiple missions back to back, divide the distance between the missions as appropriate.

Tip: If multiple participants drove in a single vehicle, assign the vehicle to the drive and label the other participants as "Passengers" in the Transportation field.

6. When the After Action Review (AAR) is complete, select the **Mark AAR as Complete** check box.

Note: The mission will be locked as soon as the AAR is marked as complete and saved. You will only be able to pay participants. If you need to modify a locked mission, you must request that USAF unlock the mission.

7. Click Save.

9.5 Complete Duty Records

After a mission is completed, MFH USAF is designed to allow you to complete duty records to pay any participants who have to be paid either travel expenses or a stipend for their participation. Because this step is not generally required for the Active Component, the Complete Duty Records task is optional. Should it be required, you may follow the following procedure.

Tip: To complete duty records unrelated to a specific mission—by duties performed—click the Duty Records link on the MFH USAF Ribbon Toolbar (See <u>Duty Records</u> on page 54 for more information).

1. From the Mission Tasks Summary, click **Complete Duty Records**.

A report of all mission participants with their current duty record status opens.

			Deceased's Information							
₩	Mission Navigator	SSN	SSN		Name:					
			olNumb	er: VA0506	140000					
				CURRENT PARTI	CIPANTS					
SSN	Last Name	First Name	UIC	CURRENT PARTI Unit Name	CIPANTS	Required	Ready for Pa			
SSN	Last Name	First Name	UIC	CURRENT PARTI Unit Name 155TH ENGR CO	CIPANTS Roles Bugler - Ceremonial	Required YES	Ready for Pa			
SSN	Last Name	First Name	UIC TPJAA	CURRENT PARTI Unit Name 155TH ENGR CO	CIPANTS Roles Bugler - Ceremonial Firing Party	Required YES NO	Ready for Pa +			
SSN	Last Name	First Name	UIC ТРЈАА	CURRENT PARTI Unit Name 155TH ENGR CO Retiree**	CIPANTS Roles Bugler - Ceremonial Firing Party Unassigned	Required YES NO NO	Ready for Pa			
SSN	Last Name	First Name	UIC TPJAA	CURRENT PARTI Unit Name 155TH ENGR CO Retiree** BTRY A 2D 111TH FA	CIPANTS Roles Bugler - Ceremonial Firing Party Unassigned Team Leader,Flag Presentation	Required YES NO NO YES	Ready for Pa + - - +			

Note: The Required column specifies whether pay is required for the participant. To complete the task, all required payments must be processed.

2. Click the participant's SSN.

The participant's duty details opens.

	NGPA Funds (FY2009-2010) (To be completed by regional NCOIC/OIC)									
Help Open/Close										
	Nex	t step Cancel								
Participating soldier:	SSN :	Grade:		Years of serv	ice for	pay:				
F		E4		5						
Unit of Assignment:	UIC:									
135 CS CMD HQS THTR REAR	X6WHD									
Latest record indicates:										
Service/VSO: Army Component / VSO Organization: National Guard Feder Payment: Calculated	Service/VSO : Army Component / VSO Organization : National Guard Federal Status Payment: Calculated									
Select Pay Type	Pay Rate (current)									
×	73.33									
Training Details:		Mission Duty F	Record Detai	ils (assigned):						
Training Details Not Available	Decd. Name	Date	Hours Lo	cation Duty Type	MFH Duty	Base Pay	Include			
	4/24	4/2009 11:30:00 AM	0.0	McCalla Burial	+					
	4/23	3/2009 10:00:00 AM	2.0	Burial	+					
	4/22	2/2009 1:00:00 PM	2.0 Birm	ningham Burial	+					
Travel, and Mission/Training Stipend Details:	1. To assign/unassign mul 2. Click "cancel" to proces	tiple stipends for pay res s record with '0.00' pay.	elect "Pay T	уре".						
Date From To Mile	s Travel \$ F	are/Toll \$ Misc \$	St	tipend assigned		Cancel	Pay			

 If the participant is National Guard Federal Status, the pay rate will be automatically calculated and filled in and the Select Pay Type drop-down will be disabled.
 If the participant is a member of a VSO, you may select None or Stipend from the Select Pay Type drop down list. All of the currently outstanding duty record information will be disabled.

Type drop-down list. All of the currently outstanding duty record information will be displayed at the bottom of the page.

4. Click Next Step.

NGF	PA Funds (FY2009-2010) (To be completed by regional NCOIC/OIC)
CER	TFICATION FOR STIPEND OR BASE RATE PAYMENT
(Use this certification block only wh	nen the soldier is due payment of the stipend for Military Funeral Honors)
I cerify that the individual named perform I further certify that this individ active duty under any part of th	ed Military Funeral Honors duty in accordance with the published guidance and procedures. Iual did not perform this period of duty in a technician status, was not performing e United State Code (USC) and is due payment of the MFH stipend or base rate.
CERTIFYING OFFICIAL:	(enter name and title)
or choos	e from a previously entered value Choose
AUTHORIZING OFFICIAL:	(enter name and title)
or choos	e from a previously entered value Choose 🗸
SCHEDULE NUMBER	FORM 1164 FIELDS R (Optional) form. When satisfied with the output, click the "Archive" button to save the
record.	ance Dayment Form applies to ADMC Federal status only **
** MFH Duty Performa	ance Payment Form applies to AKNG Federal status only **

5. Process any of the available forms:

9.5.1 Form 1164 (Travel Expenses)	
9.5.2 Form MFH Duty	52

9.5.1 Form 1164 (Travel Expenses)

Form 1164 allows you to reimburse travel expenses to participants.

1. If desired, type a Schedule Number.

Note: If you enter a Schedule Number, the number will be cached and automatically populated for any Form 1164 you create during the session. After logging out, a number will have to be entered again.

- Click the Form 1164 button.
 Form 1164 opens as a PDF. If entered, the Schedule Number is automatically populated.
 Tip: Any problems encountered opening a PDF file may be due to an outdated version of Adobe Acrobat, and can be remedied by installing the newest version on your machine or calling the help desk for support.
- 3. Review the Claimant and Expenditure information.

4. To print the form, place your curser on the **Print** icon within the PDF window and click **Print**.

Note: This action prints the form, but does not archive the form/record. If you do not archive the record, the data will continue to be displayed each time you open this form.

Us to	e the F save t	PDF file the reco ** M	"PRII rd.	VT" button to output fo	orm. ' ment	When satisfied : Form applies (with the out	put, click leral sta	the "Arch tus only *	ive" butti **	on		
	Save a (Сору 🚔	e (🖞 Search 🛛 🕐 🚺 Select 📷	0	•	* • •	- I 🐯 🕬	∩• 🖻 🛛	Search Web	21	Capture,Share, R <u>3D Designs</u>	eview
ss Signatures	CLAIM FOR REIMBURSEMENT FOR EXPENDITURES ON OFFICIAL BUSINESS								^				
Page		a. N/	ME (Last	Read the Privacy Act St , first, middle initial)	ateme	nt on the back of this	form. b. SOCIAL SECURITY	Y NO.	5. PAID BY				
		4. CLAIMANT	AILING AD	PHILLIP DDRESS (Include ZIP Code)	v	'A 20170	d. OFFICE TELEPHONE NUMBER						
		6. EXP	NDITU	RES (If fare claimed in col. (g) of the claimant.)	exceed	is charge for one pers	on, show in col. (h) the numb	er of addition	al persons w	hich a	ccompanied	
		DATE	CODE	Show appropriate code in col. (b): A - Local travel B - Telephone or telegraph, o C - Other expenses (itemized)	ŗ	D - Funeral Honors [E - Specialty Care	Detail	MILEAGE RATE 0.4850 ć	MILEAGE	FARE	ADD PER-	TIPS AND MISCEL-	
		(ai	(6)	(Explain ex)	penditu	res in specific detail.)	0	NO. OF MILES		OR TOLL	SONS	LANEOUS	
	Ja	n 26 200	5 D	26Cem1NumOne		Cem1	-	26	\$12.61	\$2,699.0	un/	\$2,699.	
	Oc	et 1 2005	D	Middleburg, VA		Richmond, VA		150	\$72.75				
	Se	p 30 200	D	bert		typo		66	\$26.78	\$345.00		\$6.00	

5. To save and archive the record, click the **1. Archive** button.

A confirmation box opens.

	CLAIM FOR	OR REIMBURSEMENT EXPENDITURES	1. DEPARTMENT OR ESTABLISHME	NT, BUREAU, DIVISION	OR OFFICE	2. VOUCHER NU	JMBER		
	ON OF	FICIAL BUSINESS				o. ooneboeen	ombert		
		Read the Privacy Act S	statement on the back of this	form.		5. PAID BY			
	a. NAME (Last	t, first, middle initial)		b. SOCIAL SECURITY	' NO.				
⊢									
AN	SMOOT	PHILLIP	oft Internet Explorer			2			
	c. MAILING A	DDRESS (Include ZIP Code)							
CL	636 CEN	TER STREET H 💙	Click OK to save and archive the	record. Click Cancel to	o exit the reco	rd without saving			
4	COU CLI								
			OK	Cancel					
6.	EXPENDITU	BES (If fare claimed in the					persons w	hich ac	companied
		the claimant.)	g p		.,				
	DATE	Show appropriate code in col. (b):			MILEAGE	Д	MOUNT CLA	IMED	
	Ö	A - Local travel	D - Funeral Honors L	Detail	RATE				
	D	C - Other expenses (itemize	d/ E - Speciality Care		0.4850 ć	MILEAGE	FARE	ADD PER-	TIPS AND MISCEL-
		(Explain e	xpenditures in specific detail l		NO. OF		OR TOLL	SONS	LANEOUS

6. Click **OK**.

A message will display saying that the record has been saved.

- 7. Click **Close PDF Window** to close the PDF form.
- 8. Click the **Back** button to return to the previous page.

9.5.2 Form MFH Duty

Form MFH Duty allows you to pay Federal Status USAF participants for mission or training duties performed.

1. Enter a Certifying and an Authorizing Official, or select names from the available drop-down lists.

Note: These values are stored for use by all administrators from your Site. To clear names from the list, use the Managing Officials Site Admin tool. (See Manage Officials for more information.)

2. Click the Form MFH Duty button.

The form opens as a PDF. The Certifying and Authorizing Official fields are populated automatically.

Tip: Any problems encountered opening a PDF file may be due to an outdated version of Adobe Acrobat, and can be remedied by installing the newest version on your machine or calling the help desk for support.

- 3. Review the Joint MFH Duty Record before choosing to print or archive.
- 4. To print the form place your curser on the **Print** icon within the PDF window and click **Print**.

Note: This action prints the form, **but does not archive** the form/record. If you do not archive the record, the data will continue to be displayed each time you open this form.

5. To save and archive the record, click the **2.** Archive button.

Click **OK** in the save and archive confirmation box.
 A message will display saying that the record has been saved.

G	Adobe Back				
PD	F File Generator	-			
	Form 1164 Form MFH Duty				
	Close PDF Window				
	the DDE file "DRINT" button to out	tout form. When esticfied with the output, elid	the "Archive" button		
to	ave the record. 2. Archive	patronni, when saushed with the bacpat, ald			
	** MFH Duty Performance	e Payment Form applies to ARNG Federal sta	itus only **		
Las					
	Save a Copy 🚍 🚷 🕅 Search	🖑 🗜 Select 📷 🛛 🔍 🖬 🔛 😁 🧐	<u>∞</u> •••	Search Web	Adobe Reader 7.0
se					Ă
ignatu					
s		Joint Military Funeral	Honors Duty F	Record	
Paget	Team:			State Employe	e:
	Name: S PHILLIP	Rank: E	4 SSN:	Excepted Technicia	an:
	Unit: CO C 3D BN 116T	н		Duty Cod	ie: 44
	I authorized this memb	er to perform Military Funeral Honors Duty on ti	ne date(s) shown below.		
	Authorizing Official:		.,		
		Printed Name and Title		Signature	
	DATE: TIME IN:	TIME OUT: DUTY PERFORMED:	CONTROL#:	DUTY LOCATION: SIGNA	ATURE:
	Sep 30 2005	Funeral Mission	VA0507130002	Vienna	
	Con 4 2005		N // A		

- 7. Click **Close PDF Window** to close the PDF form.
- 8. Click the **Back** button to return to the previous page.

10 Duty Records

Locate, display, and process Airman Duty Records awaiting completion and submittal for payment, or perform an Archive Search to find an Airman's archived records.

Duty Records 4
Process Duty Records 🗲
Archive Search
DFAS Search
Incomplete
Honorable Transfer Duties

Note: Mission-related duty records may also be accessed through the Create Duty Record link on the Scheduled Participants page or the Complete Duty Records link In the Mission Tasks list on the Mission Information page.

Explore any of the following topics to learn more:

10.1 Process Duty Records	54
10.2 Archive Search	55
10.3 DFAS Search	59
10.4 Incomplete	59
10.5 Dignified Arrival Duties	

10.1 Process Duty Records

Duty Records 🗲	
Process Duty Records 🗲	M-Day Soldiers
Archive Search	Travel & Stipend
DFAS Search	
Incomplete	
Honorable Transfer Duties	

These links open the Process Duty Records page, which provides the ability to search participant's duties performed (where they are MFH duty-pay compliant) and display a listing of the current Duty Records awaiting completion and submittal for payment.

10.1.1 Travel & Stipend

Tra	avel and Stipend Expenses (all o Form 1164 records	luties)
S	earch:	
SSN	Name	
Showing	1 to 5 of 5 entries 🛛 😽	

Displays Travel and Stipend Expenses.

Click participant SSN to view, update, and/or complete duty record information. (See <u>Complete Duty</u> <u>Records</u> on page 48 for more information.)

Tip: To quickly locate a particular Airman's record, simply type any part of the first name, last name, or SSN, or any combination of any parts thereof, into the Search box. The results list will be filtered to only display records that contain the search criteria.

10.2 Archive Search

From the Archive Search you can search for archived duty records by mission or participant, review archived duty records, and request that duty records be de-archived so corrections can be made.

10.2.1 Search For And View Archived Duty Records By Mission

 Click Duty Records on the MFH USAF Ribbon Toolbar, and select Archive Search from the drop-down list.

The Archive Search screen appears.

10 Duty Records

Search for a Po	rchived particip ay and 1164 re	oant's MFH Duty cords
Set N	lission/Duty Da	ite Range
Fiscal Year	Start Month	End Month
2010	Oct 🔽	Oct 💌
	Search by Miss	sion
(Mission ass	ociated records on	ly)
Deceased Name		GO
5	Search by Partic	cipant
By Name		Display List
Or SSN		GO

- 2. Type a fiscal year in the Fiscal Year textbox, or use the arrows to select a fiscal year.
- 3. Select a start month and end month from the drop-down lists to designate the date range for which you would like to search.

Tip: To locate a specific mission, type the deceased's name in the Deceased Name textbox.

4. Click **Go** in the Search by Mission group. A list of all archived missions that match the criteria opens.

Search for archived partic Pay and 1164	cipant's M records	IFH Duty		List of Part	icipants for:	Johnson, Jay		
Set Mission/Duty I	Date Rang	je	SSN	Last Na	ame	10511114	First Name	
Piscal real Start Holiti						LUCAS		
2009 Oct V	UCI N	4	1					
Search by M	ission		105	HUA MFH Dutv	Pay and 116	4 records (Pa	vment processe	d)
(Mission associated records	only)							
Deceased Name john		GO	Training Details:		Mission I	Duty Record Details:		
Coarch by Day	ticipant		Not Available		N	ot Available		
Search by Par	пстрант							
By Name	_	Display List		т	ravel/Stipend De	tails:		
Or SSN	G	50 l	Date	From	To Miles	Travel \$	Fare/Toll \$	Misc \$
	_		No Records Found		0	0	c	0 0
List of Associated Mission: Control # (select to see participants) TX0810090000 John TX0810090000 John TX0810120009 John TX0812020000 John TX081020000 John TX08100000 John TX08100000 John TX081000000 John TX081000000 John TX08100000 John TX081000000 John TX081000000 John TX081000000 John TX081000000 John TX08100000 John TX081000000 John TX0810000000 John TX0810000000 John TX0810000000 John TX081000000 John TX081000000 John TX081000000 John TX081000000 John TX08000000 John TX08000000 John TX080000000 John TX080000000 John TX080000000 John TX080000000 John TX080000000 John TX080000000 John TX0800000000 John TX08000000 John TX080000000 John TX080000000 John TX080000000 John TX080000000 John TX080000000 John TX080000000 John TX080000000 John TX08000000 John TX080000000 John TX080000000 John TX080000000 John TX080000000 John TX0800000000000000000000000000000000000	5: Funeral Date	Cemetery Date 10/8/2008 11:30:00 AM 10/9/2008 12:30:00 PM 10/13/2008 10:45:00 AM 10:45:00 AM	Send an e-mail to Help I Submit: your state nan	Desk to de-archiv le, participant's s	e selected reco	rds Id justification for	r de-archiving.	

Note: Participants must be United States Air Force Federal Status for Mission Duty Record and Training Details to display.

- 5. Click the Mission Control # to see the participants related to the mission.
- 6. Click a participant's SSN to view the Mission Duty Record Details and the Travel/Stipend Details.

10.2.2 Search For Archived Records By Participant

1. Click **Duty Records** on the MFH USAF Ribbon Toolbar, and select **Archive Search** from the drop-down list.

The Archive Search screen appears. Search for archived participant's MFH Duty Pay and 1164 records Set Mission/Duty Date Range Start Month Fiscal Year End Month 2010 Oct 🗸 Oct 🗸 • Search by Mission (Mission associated records only) Deceased Name GO Search by Participant **Display List** By Name GO Or SSN

- 2. Type a fiscal year in the Fiscal Year textbox, or use the arrows to select a fiscal year.
- 3. Select a start month and end month from the drop-down lists to designate the date range for which you would like to search.

Tip: To locate a specific participant, type the participant's name in the By Name textbox.

4. Click **Display List** in the Search by Participant group. A list of all participants in archived missions that match the criteria opens.

Search for a P	rchived partic ay and 1164	cipant's M records	IFH Duty
Set I	lission/Duty I	Date Rang	ge
Fiscal Year	Start Month	End Mor	nth
2009	Oct 💌	Oct 💉	1
	Search by Mi	ssion	
(Mission ass	ociated records (only)	
Deceased Name			GO
5	Search by Par	ticipant	
By Name j)isplay List
	ERIC 4		
	FLOYD 3	_	
	1		
Or SSN		GO	

Note: Participants must be National Guard Federal Status for Mission Duty Record and Training Details to display.

5. Click a participant's SSN.

The participant's Mission Duty Record Details and Travel/Stipend Details open. JOSHUA MFH Duty Pay and 1164 records (Payment processed)

Training Details: Not Available			Mission I N	Duty Record Detai ot Available	ls:	
		Travel,	/Stipend De	tails:		
Date	From	То	Miles	Travel \$	Fare/Toll \$	Misc \$
No Records Found	••	•••	0	0	0	0

10.2.3 Correct Archived Records

The envelope icon (\bowtie) below Travel/Stipend Details allows the user to send an e-mail message to the Help Desk, requesting that a record be de-archived in order to make any corrections that may be deemed necessary.

When the user clicks the **Send an e-mail...** icon (\boxtimes), provides the required explanatory information (state name, participant's SSN, duty date and justification for de-archiving), and sends the e-mail to the RCMS Help Desk, the request can be evaluated and the appropriate action taken.

10.3 DFAS Search

				Nation	al Gua	rd Federal S	tatus only						
		Use c Apply	alendars to s 2008/ SSN filter.	elect two (10/01	dates i	n any order to) see list of D	OFAS paid s ⇒ GO	oldiers.				
SSN DUTY	START	DUTY END	Amount Paid	Tra	ining D	uty Record De	etails:		Mission Du	uty Re	cord Deta	ils:	
20	090316	20090316	89.03	Training	Trng							Duty	
20	090309	20090309	89.03	Date	Hrs	City	State Pay Rate	Decd. Name	Date	Hours	Location	Туре	Pay Rate
20	090303	20090303	89.03	20090204	0	WEATHERFORD	TX 90.1795	B aymon	20090225	1.0	HOUSTON	Burial	90.1795
20	090302	20090302	89.03					W Edgar	20090225	1.0	HOUSTON	Burial	90.1795
20	090225	20090225	89.03		al	cnive		F	20090225	1.0	HOUSTON	Burial	90,1795
20	090213	20090213	89.03					Charles	200000220		HOUSTON	Duriel	00.1705
20	090212	20090212	89.03					Joe	20090225	1.0	HOUSTON	Buriai	90.1795
20	090211	20090211	89.03										
20	090202	20090202	89.03						al	GII	ive		
20	090130	20090130	89.03										
20	090129	20090129	89.03										
20	090128	20090128	89.03										
20	090128	20090128	67.50										
20	081029	20081029	56.26										
20	081028	20081028	56.26										
20	081027	20081027	56.26										
20	081025	20081025	56.26										
20	081024	20081024	56.26										
20	081023	20081023	56.26										
1 <u>2345</u>													

Documentation under development.

10.4 Incomplete

Enter SSN to see List of Missions with incomplete duty record assignments
GO
Then click on Mission control hyperlink below to proceed to Mission Information page to complete or remove assignment(s)

Documentation under development.

10.5 Dignified Arrival Duties

Dignified Arrival Duties link opens Dignified Arrival Related Duties page.

Honorable Transf	er and associated training participations by a time s (Included: ADOS, M-day, and Retirees)	pan.
CMD: My Command Date: 5/12/2010	Set Fiscal Year Start Month End Mo 2010 oct 🖌 oct	nth Y
	TIME SPAN:	
2009	2010	
oct nov dec	jan feb mar apr may jun jul aug	sep
Run Search	total \$\$ cost this period 🔀	

Documentation under development.

The Management Center allows you to manage the different types of records in MFH USAF. Explore any of the following topics to learn more:

11.1 Managing Funeral Homes	61
11.2 Managing Funeral Home POCs	64
11.3 Managing Transfer Locations	66
11.4 Managing Transfer Location POCs	69
11.5 Managing Cemeteries	70
11.6 Managing Cemetery POCs	72
11.7 Managing Training Sites	74
11.8 Managing the List of Participants	74
11.9 Manage Participant Teams	81

11.1 Managing Funeral Homes

Note: Not all information is required to enter/edit a Funeral Home; some fields can be filled in later.

Add Funeral Home

1. Select the Add New radio button.

		O Manage Fun	eral Locations	🔵 Manage P	OCs
		Ad	ld New 🔘 Dele	te/Edit/Deactivate	
List of F	uneral Loca	tions			Add From Another State
*FH Name:				User STATE:	VA
Address1:				Address	52:
City:				Zip:	
State:	Virginia	-		Phone:	
Website:					
			\$	ave New	Cancel

- Enter the name of the Funeral Home in the FH Name field.
 Tip: If you wish to enter a location that is not a Funeral Home you may enter "serving as Funeral Home" or some other substitute location of choice.
- 3. Enter the Street, City, and 5-digit ZIP code information in the appropriate fields.
- 4. Enter the 10-digit phone number for the Funeral Home in the Phone fields, without dashes. **Tip:** You may press **Tab** to advance the cursor from field to field.
- 5. Click **Save New**, or click **Cancel** to exit without saving your changes.

Edit Funeral Home

1. Select the **Delete/Edit/Deactivate** radio button.

	0) Manage Funera	Locations	Manage POCs		
		O Add Ne	w 🖲 Delete	e/Edit/Deactivate		-
List of	-uneral Location	15	•			
*FH Name:				User V STATE: V	A	
Address1:				Address2:		
City:				Zip:		
		- 10 A			- 1 - C	
State:	Virginia	*		Phone:		
Website:						

- 2. Select a Funeral Home from the List of Funeral Locations drop-down menu.
- 3. Edit any Funeral Home information except the FH Name.
- Click the Update button to save your changes.
 Tip: You cannot edit the name of a Funeral Home. If a name has changed, use the Add Funeral Home function to create a new entry.

Deactivate Funeral Home

1. Select the **Delete/Edit/Deactivate** radio button.

		O Manage Fune	ral Locations	🔘 Manage PC)Cs	
		bbA 🔘	New 🖲 Dele	ete/Edit/Deactivate		
List of	Funeral Loca	ations				
			Ŧ			
*EH Name:				User	VA	
				STATE:		_
Address1:				Address		
City:				Zip:		
State:	Virginia	×		Phone:		
Website:						

- 2. Select a Funeral Home from the **List of Funeral Locations** drop-down menu.
- 3. Click the **Deactivate** button.

Delete Funeral Home

1. Select the **Delete/Edit/Deactivate** radio button.

		O Manag	ge Funeral Lo	ocations	۲	Manage POC	5		
			O Add New	Oelete	e/Edit/D	eactivate			
List of	Funeral Loc	ations		٠					
FH Name:						User STATE:	VA		
Address1:						Address2:			
City:						Zip:			
itate:	Virginia		-			Phone:	•	-	

- 2. Select a Funeral Home from the List of Funeral Locations drop-down menu.
- Click the Delete button.
 Caution: The deletion step is final.

11.2 Managing Funeral Home POCs

Select the Manage Funeral Home POCs radio button.

Select the task to be performed (Add New or Delete/Edit) so that the screen status appearing on the right of the Add New button says Delete POC / Edit POC or Add New POC.

Add Funeral Home POC

1. Select the Add New radio button.

	Manage Funeral Locations O Manage POCs	
	⑧ Add New 💿 Delete/Edit	
List of Funeral Locations	•	

- 2. Select a Funeral Home name from the **List of Funeral Locations** drop-down menu.
- 3. Enter the name of the Funeral Home POC in the POC Last Name and POC First Name fields.
- 4. Enter the 10-digit phone number and cell phone number for the Funeral Home POC in the Phone fields, without dashes, and the POC title and e-mail address, if available.
- Click Save New, or click Cancel to exit without saving your changes.
 If you click Save New, the new POC is displayed within the Active POCs information field (on the right side of the screen).
- 6. Repeat this process to add any other new POCs.

Edit Funeral Home POC

1. Select the **Delete/Edit** radio button.

ST SITE ***	Manage Funeral Locations O Manage POCs	
	Addition and policy (7.55	
List of Funeral Locations	S Aud New S Deecup conc	

- 2. Select a Funeral Home from the List of Funeral Locations drop-down menu.
- 3. Select a POC from the **Select Point of Contact** drop-down menu.
- 4. Edit any Funeral Home POC information except the Name.
- Click the Save button to save your changes.
 Tip: You cannot edit the name of a Funeral Home POC. If a name has changed, use the Add Funeral HomeNew POC function to create a new entry.

Delete Funeral Home POC

1. Select the **Delete/Edit** radio button.

ST SITE ***	Manage Funeral Locations O Manage POCs	*** TEST SITE ***
	🔘 Add New 🛛 🖲 Delete/Edit	
List of Funeral Locations		

- 2. Select a Funeral Home from the List of Funeral Locations drop-down menu.
- 3. Select a POC from the **Select Point of Contact** drop-down menu.
- Click the Delete button.
 Caution: The deletion step is final.

11.3 Managing Transfer Locations

Note: Not all information is required to enter/edit a Transfer Location; some fields can be filled in later.

Add Transfer Location

1. Select the Add New radio button.

		of the second second second	and the time		***
	Manage Tr	ansfer Lo	cations 🔘	Manage PO	Cs
	۲	Add New	Oelete/Edit/E)eactivate	
Transfor Loc	ations			1	Add From Another STATE
			v	ļ	
				User STATE:	VA
				Zip:	
Virginia				Dhone	
virginia				Filoner	
			Save New		ncel
			Savenew	Ca	
	Transfer Loc	Manage Tr Transfer Locations Virginia	Manage Transfer Lo Add New Transfer Locations Virginia Image: Control of the second secon	Manage Transfer Locations Add New Delete/Edit/C Transfer Locations Virginia Save New	Manage Transfer Locations Manage PO Add New Delete/Edit/Deactivate Transfer Locations User STATE: Virginia Phone: Save New Ca

 Enter the name of the Transfer Location in the TL Name field.
 Tip: If you wish to enter a location that is not a Transfer Location you may enter "serving as Transfer Location" or some other substitute location of choice.

- 3. Enter the Street, City, and 5-digit ZIP code information in the appropriate fields.
- 4. Enter the 10-digit phone number for the Transfer Location in the Phone fields, without dashes.

Tip: You may press Tab to advance the cursor from field to field.

5. Click **Save New**, or click **Cancel** to exit without saving your changes.

Edit Transfer Location

1. Select the **Delete/Edit/Deactivate** radio button.

		🔘 Add Ner	w 🖲 Delete/	'Edit/Deactivate		
List of	Transfer Locati	ions				
	Transfer Loout		•			
TL Name:				User	VA	
Loc. ID:				STATE:		
City:				Zip:		
tate:	Virginia			Phone:		

- 2. Select a Transfer Location from the **List of Transfer Locations** drop-down menu.
- 3. Edit any Transfer Location information except the TL Name.
- Click the Update button to save your changes.
 Tip: You cannot edit the name of a Transfer Location. If a name has changed, use the Add Transfer Location function to create a new entry.

Deactivate Transfer Location

1. Select the **Delete/Edit/Deactivate** radio button.

	0	Manage Transfer L	ocations	Manage POO	Cs	TES
		O Add New	Oelete/	Edit/Deactivate		
List of 1	Fransfer Locatio	ns	•			
*TL Name:				User STATE:	VA	
Loc. ID:						
City:				Zip:		
State:	Virginia	-		Phone:		
Website:						
¢		Update	Delete	Deactivate		

- 2. Select a Transfer Location from the List of Transfer Locations drop-down menu.
- 3. Click the **Deactivate** button.

Delete Transfer Location

1. Select the **Delete/Edit/Deactivate** radio button.

		Manage Transfe	r Locations	Manage POC	s	
	_	O Add Ne	ew 🔍 Delete	/Edit/Deactivate		-
List of	Transfer Lo	cations				
			•			
*TL Name:				User STATE:	VA	
Loc. ID:						
City:				Zip:		
State:	Virginia	v		Phone:		
Website:						
		Update	Delete	Deactivate		

- 2. Select a Transfer Location from the List of Transfer Locations drop-down menu.
- 3. Click the **Delete** button.

Caution: The deletion step is final.

11.4 Managing Transfer Location POCs

Click Manage POCs.

Select the task to be performed (Add New or Delete/Edit).

Add Transfer Location POC

1. Select the **Add New** radio button.

ST SITE ***	Manage Transfer Locations O Manage POCs	
	◙ Add New 💮 Delete∕Edit	
	List of Transfer Locations	

- 2. Select a Transfer Location name from the List of Transfer Locations drop-down menu.
- 3. Enter the name of the Transfer Location POC in the POC Last Name and POC First Name fields.
- 4. Enter the 10-digit phone number and cell phone number for the Transfer Location POC in the Phone fields, without dashes, and the POC title and e-mail address, if available.
- Click Save New, or click Cancel to exit without saving your changes.
 If you click Save New, the new POC is displayed within the Active POCs information field (on the right side of the screen).
- 6. Repeat this process to add any other new POCs.

Edit Transfer Location POC

1. Select the **Delete/Edit** radio button.

ST SITE ***	Manage Transfer Locations Manage POCs	
	🔿 Add New 💿 Deletz/Edit	
	List of Transfer Locations	

- 2. Select a Transfer Location from the List of Transfer Locations drop-down menu.
- 3. Select a POC from the **Select Point of Contact** drop-down menu.
- 4. Edit any Transfer Location POC information except the Name.

5. Click the **Save** button to save your changes.

Tip: You cannot edit the name of a Transfer Location POC. If a name has changed, use the **Add Transfer LocationNew POC** function to create a new entry.

Delete Transfer Location POC

1. Select the **Delete/Edit** radio button.

ST SITE *** *** TF	Manage Transfer Locations O Manage PDCs
	Add New O Delete/Edit
	List of Transfer Locations
	•

- 2. Select a Transfer Location from the List of Transfer Locations drop-down menu.
- 3. Select a POC from the **Select Point of Contact** drop-down menu.
- Click the Delete button.
 Caution: The deletion step is final.

11.5 Managing Cemeteries

Click Management Center on the MFH USAF Ribbon Toolbar, select Cemeteries and POCs, and click Manage Cemeteries.

The illustration below shows the landing page for managing Cemetery. By default, **Delete/Edit** Cemeteries is the selected radio button.

	Delete/Edit Cemetery	
*** TEST SITE ***	Add new Cemetery Deactivate Existing Cemetery	*** TEST SITE ***
Select from List		
"Type National "Name:	v User STATE: VA	
Address(1): City:	Address(2): Zip: State: Virginia	
Phone: -	- Website:	

From this page you can:

Add Cemetery

1. Select the Add New radio button.

	O Delete/Edit Cemetery	
	Ø Add new Cemetery	
	Deactivate Existing Cemetery	
Select from List		
v		
Add from Another State		
*Type Private	•	
*Name:	User STATE: VA	
Address(1):	Address(2):	
City:	Zip: State: Virginia	▼
Phone: -	- Website:	
	Constant	
	Save new	

2. Select the Add new Cemetery radio button.

	Delete/Edit Cemetery	
	Ø Add new Cemetery	
	Deactivate Existing Cemetery	
Select from List		
v		
Add from Another State		
*Type Private	*	
*Name:	User STATE: VA	
Address(1):	Address(2):	
City:	Zip: State: Vi	rginia 🚽 👻
Phone: -	- Website:	
	Save New	

- 3. Select a type from the **Type** drop-down menu.
- Enter the name of the Cemetery in the Name field.
 Tip: If you wish to enter a burial location that is not a Cemetery you may enter "serving as burial location" or some other substitute location of choice.
- 5. Enter the Street, City, and 5-digit ZIP code information in the appropriate fields.
- Enter the 10-digit phone number for the Cemetery in the Phone fields, without dashes.
 Tip: You may press Tab to advance the cursor from field to field.
- 7. Click Save New.

Edit Cemetery

1. Select the **Delete/Edit** radio button.

	Ø Delete/Edit Cemetery	
	Add new Cemetery	
*** TEST SITE ***	O Deactivate Existing Cemetery	
TEOTOTE	TLOTOTTL	TLOTOTTL
Select from List		
-		
*Type National	v	
*Name:	User STATE: VA	
Address(1):	Address(2):	
City:	Zip: State: Virginia	▼
Phone: -	- Website:	
	Update Delete	

- 2. Select a Cemetery from the **Select from List** drop-down menu.
- 3. Edit any Cemetery information except the Name.

Click the Update button to save your changes.
 Tip: You cannot edit the name of a Cemetery. If a name has changed, use the Add Cemetery function to create a new entry.

Deactivate Cemetery

1. Select the Deactivate Existing Cemetery radio button.

	Delete/Edit Cemetery	
	C Add new Cemetery	
	Deactivate Existing Cemetery	
	ILOI OIL	
Select from List		
- Select nom List		
*Type National	▼	
*Name:	User STATE: VA	
Address(1):	Address(2):	
City:	Zip: State: Virginia	. ▼
Phone: -	- Website:	
	Deactivate	

- 2. Select a Cemetery from the **Select from List** drop-down menu.
- 3. Click the **Deactivate** button.

Delete Cemetery

1. Select the **Delete/Edit** radio button.

	Delete/Edit Cemetery	
*** TEST SITE ***	Add new Cemetery Add new Cemetery Add new Cemetery *** TEST SITE ***	
Select from List		
*Type National	June STATE VA	
Address(1): City:	Address(2): Zp: State: Virginia -	
Phone: -	Webster	
	Update Delete	

- 2. Select a Cemetery from the **Select from List** drop-down menu.
- Click the Delete button.
 Caution: The deletion step is final.

11.6 Managing Cemetery POCs

Add Cemetery POC

- 1. Select the Add New radio button.
- 2. Select a Cemetery name from the List of Cemeteries drop-down menu.
- 3. Enter the name of the Cemetery POC in the POC Last Name and POC First Name fields.
- 4. Enter the 10-digit phone number and cell phone number for the Cemetery POC in the Phone fields, without dashes, and the POC title and e-mail address, if available.
5. Click Save New.

If you click **Save New**, the new POC is displayed within the Active POCs information field (on the right side of the screen).

6. Repeat this process to add any other new POCs.

Edit Cemetery POC

1. Select the **Delete/Edit** radio button.

To delete/edit existing POC select a cemetery from drop down list. Select existin To add a new POC select "Add New" radio button.	g POC to delete/edit.	
	Add New	Delete/Edit
List of Cemeteries MAPLEWCOD CEMETERY (Gordonsville)		Select Point of Contact

- 2. Select a Cemetery from the **Select from List** drop-down menu.
- 3. Select a POC from the **Select Point of Contact** drop-down menu.
- 4. Edit any Cemetery POC information except the Name.
- 5. Click the **Save** button to save your changes.

Tip: You cannot edit the name of a Cemetery POC. If a name has changed, use the Add CemeteryNew POC function to create a new entry.

Delete Cemetery POC

1. Select the **Delete/Edit** radio button.

	To delete/edit existing POC select a cemetery from drop down list. Select existing POC to delete/edit. To add a new POC select "Add New" radio button.	
	O Add New	Delete/Edit
List o	of Cemeteries VOOD CEMETERY (Gordonavile)	Select Point of Contact

- 2. Select a Cemetery from the Select from List drop-down menu.
- 3. Select a POC from the **Select Point of Contact** drop-down menu.
- 4. Click the **Delete** button.

Caution: The deletion step is final.

11.7 Managing Training Sites

The Military Funeral Honors—United States Air Force(MFH USAF) application allows the user to input (or edit) a new training site in **two ways** – from the Management Center link on the menu bar, or from the Training Center link on the Ribbon Toolbar. (Training Schedule, Add New to List for "on the fly" additions/updates.) Note that each training site/location must have a unique name. (You cannot have two locations with the same name, even if each has a unique address.)

Note: For more information on adding Training Sites on the fly from the Training Center, see <u>Add New</u> <u>Training Site</u> on page 104.

11.7.1 To Add New, Active Or Re-Activate A Training Location

- 1. From the Management Center link on the Ribbon Toolbar click **Training Sites**, and the page will open with the default page mode displaying Add New to List.
- Use the text box labeled Training Location Name to type in the name (Unit Name or Site Name) of a new training location or click the List of Inactive Sites and Unit Names to activate or re-activate a previously entered site/unit name.
- 3. Click the **Save** icon to save location to list of training locations.

11.7.2 To Delete/Edit A Training Location

- 1. From the Management Center link on the Ribbon Toolbar click Training Sites, and the page will open with the default page mode displaying Add New to List.
- 2. Click the Delete/Edit button so that the page mode displays "Delete/Edit."
- 3. Select the Training Location Name from the drop-down box.
- To delete, click the Remove (Remove Location from List) button.
 Note: Deletion of the Training Location removes that location from the list of active Training Locations. The information for that training location remains in the system and can be re-activated if desired.
- To edit, use the curser to click any displayed field (except name) and edit the information, before clicking the Save (Save location to List) button.
 Note: Edits can be performed on each displayed field with the exception of Name. If you wish to change the name, you must re-enter all information as if this is a new site.

11.8 Managing The List Of Participants

You can add, remove, edit, and deactivate participants from a central location. You can also view existing participants and see the missions that each has participated in. Explore any of the following topics to learn more:

11.8.1 Add, Remove, or Restore Participants	75
11.8.2 Remove Existing Participants	76
11.8.3 Restore Participants Who Have Previously Been Removed	77
11.8.4 Add New Participants	78
11.8.5 Check/Edit Records	81

11.8.1 Add, Remove, Or Restore Participants

Click **Management Center** in the MFH USAF Ribbon Toolbar, select **List of Participants**, and click **Add/Remove Restore**.

Here you can complete the following tasks:

- Remove Existing Participants (See <u>Remove Existing Participants</u> on next page for more information.)
- Restore Participants Who Have Been Removed (See <u>Restore Participants Who Have Pre-</u>viously Been Removed on page 77 for more information)
- Add New Participants (See Add New Participants on page 78 for more information.)
- Search for Participants (See <u>Search in ARNG/USAR</u> on page 80for more information.)

11.8.2 Remove Existing Participants

- 1. Click Management Center and select List of Participants, then click Add/remove/restore.
- 2. Click the **Remove/Restore/Search** button.

A list of all participants with their linked SSNs opens.

Current page mode: Remove/Restore, Search					
	Add New		Remove/Restore/S	earch	l
9/	Coloct action	remov	a activa/search		
	select action	: Tennov			
Demous	None e	LUTC		Currela	Record
Remove	Name	OIC	Unit Name	Grade	Search
			Oth**82nd AIRBORNE ASSOC		
		RVRTO	HHSC 223RD MI BN	E5	
		P96T0	HHC 40TH SPC TRPS BN	E5	
		PBCAA	297TH AREA SPT MED CO	E4	
		TSSAA	670ТН МР СО	E3	
			Oth**AFFILIATED VETERANS COUNCIL OF SACRAMENTO		
				E7	
			unkn	E2	
		PVWAD	A/ 1-184TH IN BN REAR DET	E1	
			ROTC**Air Force Jr ROTC (Vista)		
			ROTC**AIR FORCE JR ROTC from VICTORVILLE		
			Oth**AIR GUARD_Goodman, Robert		
		8FEAA	HQ 223RD (CBT ARMS) REGT	E5	
			AL**AL 18th DISTRICT		
			AL**AL DIST 10		
<u>12345678910</u>					
Find A Participant's Last 10 Records					
To show 10 records enter SSN and click Search To show all check and click "Search"					

- 3. From the **Select action** box in the center of the page, select **remove active/search**.
- Click the SSN of the participant you wish to remove. The screen will refresh and the bottom left corner will display the message "Last Removed" followed by the SSN of the participant you selected.
- 5. No further action is necessary to make your removal complete. However, you may select to click the **Roll Back Last** button, allowing you to restore your last removal.

11.8.3 Restore Participants Who Have Previously Been Removed

- 1. Click Management Center and select List of Participants, then click Add/remove/restore.
- 2. Click the **Remove/Restore/Search** button.

A list of all participants with their linked SSNs opens.

Current page mode: Remove/Restore, Search					
Add New Remove / Restore / Search					
					<u> </u>
0.4		romou			
~	Select actio	on: remov	e active/search		
					Decord
Remove	Name	UIC	Unit Name	Grade	Search
			Oth**82nd AIRBORNE ASSOC		
		RVRTO	HHSC 223RD MI BN	E5	
		P96T0	HHC 40TH SPC TRPS BN	E5	
		PBCAA	297TH AREA SPT MED CO	E4	
		TSSAA	670ТН МР СО	E3	
			Oth**AFFILIATED VETERANS COUNCIL OF SACRAMENTO		
				E7	
			unkn	E2	
		PVWAD	A/ 1-184TH IN BN REAR DET	E 1	
			ROTC**Air Force Jr ROTC (Vista)		
			ROTC**AIR FORCE JR ROTC from VICTORVILLE		
			Oth**AIR GUARD_Goodman, Robert		
		8FEAA	HQ 223RD (CBT ARMS) REGT	E5	
			AL**AL 18th DISTRICT		
AL**AL DIST 10					
1 <u>2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10</u>					
Find A Participant's Last 10 Records					
To show 10 records enter SSN and click Search To show all check and click "Search"					

- 3. From the **Select action** box in the center of the page, select **restore deactivated/search**.
- Click the SSN of the participant you wish to restore. The screen will refresh and the bottom left corner will display the message "Last Restored" followed by the SSN of the participant you selected.
- 5. No further action is necessary to make your restore complete, however, you may select to click the **Roll Back Last** button, allowing you to remove your last restore selection.

11.8.4 Add New Participants

The page that is set (by default) to display, shows all participants and their linked SSNs. The user may select to perform the action of removing existing participants OR restoring those participants who have been removed.

Click the Add New button.

Current page mode: Add New				
Add New	Remove/Restore/Search			
<u>Manual entry</u>	Search in ARNG/USAR			

From this page, the user may either enter participants manually—when new participant information doesn't exist in the database—or search for new participants in ARNG/USAR—to locate the name and other identifying information for the person to be added to the list of existing funeral honors participants. Explore any of the following topics to learn more:

11.8.4.1 Manual Entry

Persons not already in theMFH USAF database who the user wishes to add to the list of MFH USAF participants.

1. Click the **Manual entry** link.

Add	Current page m	ode: Add New	move/Restore	
Select one: Paid Unpaid Service Army Re	Component	 ज		
SSN (9 digits, no dashes)	LastName	First Name	Middle Name	
Address1	Address2	City	ZIP (5 digits)	
Unit of Assignment: UIC: Grade: Cancel Save New				
BACK TO MANAGEMENT CENTER				

2. Add participants through any of the available methods:

Adding a Paid VSO/Authorized Provider Participant

1. Select the **Paid** radio button.

A screen appears, asking for specific information about the organization and participant.

- 2. Use the Select organization drop down to select the organization of the participant and if desired, type in the organization name (for example: Post 1234).
- 3. Enter a participant SSN, Name and address in the appropriate text boxes.
- 4. Optionally, enter Unit of Assignment, UIC, and Grade information.
- 5. Click Save New.

"The record has been saved" will display at the bottom of the screen.

Adding an Unpaid VSO/Authorized Provider Participant

- 1. Select the **Unpaid** radio button.
 - A screen appears, asking for specific information about the organization and participant.
- Use the Select organization drop down to select the organization of the participant and if desired, type in the organization name (for example: Post 1234).
 A unique nine character identification number will be generated to track the participant (appearing as XXX... in the SSN and last name text boxes) so that no other information is needed. The application will use the Organization Name for tracking (example: VFW**Post 1234) wherever a participant's name would ordinarily be displayed
- 3. Click Save New.

"The record for SSN (XXXX) has been saved" will display at the bottom of the screen.

Current page mode: Add New Add New Remove/Restore				
Manual er	ntry	<u></u>	arch in ARNG/USAR	
VSO/Authorized Providers	<u>Oth</u>	<u>er (Army, Navy, Air For</u>	<u>ce, Marine Corps, Coast Guard)</u>	
Select one: C Paid © Unpaid Select Organization (YSO/Authorized providers) Organization Name AMVETS				
SSN (9 digits, no dashes)	Last Name	First Name	Middle Name	
Address1 digits)	Address2	City	ZIP (5	
Unit of Assignment:		IC: Grade:		
Cancel Save New The record for SSN=0022v05VA has been saved.				
BACK TO MANAGEMENT CENTER				

Adding Other (Army, Navy, Air Force, etc.) Paid Participants

1. Select the **Paid** radio button.

A screen appears, asking for specific information about the organization and participant.

- 2. Use the **Select organization** drop-down to select the organization of the participant.
- 3. Enter a participant SSN, Last and First Name, and Address.

- 4. Optionally, enter Unit of Assignment, UIC, and Grade information.
- 5. Click Save New.

"The record has been saved" will display at the bottom of the screen.

Adding Other (Army, Navy, Air Force, etc.) Unpaid Participants

1. Select the **Unpaid**radio button.

A screen appears, asking for specific information about the organization and participant.

- 2. Use the Service and Component drop-down lists to select the appropriate information for the participant.
- 3. Enter a participant SSN, Last and First Name, and Address.

Tip: If you only have the last four digits of a participant's SSN, enter five Xs followed by the four known digits. The participant will be assigned an SSN in the format XSSLF#### where SS is the participant's two-letter state abbreviation and LF is the participant's last name initial and first name initial. Anywhere full SSNs are displayed in the application, this format will be displayed.

- 4. Optionally, enter Unit of Assignment, UIC, and Grade information.
- 5. Click Save New.

"Record has been saved" will display at the bottom of the screen.

11.8.4.2 Search In ARNG/USAR

Persons already in the MFH USAF database who the user wishes to add to the list of participants.

Current page mode: Add New		
Add New	Remove/Restore/Search	
<u>Manual entry</u>	Search in ARNG/USAR	
Search by Name: (Current ARNG) 💿 By SSN (ARNG,USAR) 🔘	Search value> GO	

Search by Name (Current ARNG)

- 1. Click the Search by Name radio button.
- 2. In the **Search Value** textbox, type one (1) or more characters of the participant's last name.
- 3. Click the **GO** button.

The name(s) matching your criteria will be displayed.

Tip: If there are page numbers at the bottom of the list, click them to page through the list of names.

4. Click the name to be added to the list of existing participants. The individual's identifying information opens.

- 5. Confirm that the Service and Component are correct for this participant.
- 6. Click **Save New** to add the individual to your list of existing participants. The message "Record Has Been Saved" appears at the bottom of the screen

Search by SSN (ARNG/USAR)

- 1. Click the (Search) By SSN (ARNG, USAR) radio button.
- 2. Type the entire 9-digit SSN without dashes in the Search value textbox.
- 3. Click the **GO** button.

If the record is **not** found in the ARNG/USAR database, a "No Records Found" message will appear.

If the **record is found**, the participant's information will be added to your list of existing participants. The message "Record Has Been Saved" appears at the bottom of the screen. Confirm that the Service and Component are correct for this participant.

11.8.5 Check/Edit Records

Find A Participant's Last 10 Records					
To show 10 records enter SSN or select an active participant from the drop down (SSN will take priority)					
and click	Search To show all check 📃 and click "Search"				
Export grid to Excel					

Use the Check/Edit Records page to view a list of the missions a participant has participated in.

- 1. Click Management Center, select List of Participants, and click Check/Edit Records.
- Either enter the participant's SSN, or select the participant's name from the drop-down list. Note: If you enter both an SSN and select a name, the application will search only for the SSN.
- 3. Click Search.

A list of the last ten missions that a participant has been assigned to in MFH opens. **Tip:** To view all missions a participant has been assigned to, select the check box prior to clicking **Search**.

11.9 Manage Participant Teams

Documentation under development.

12 Reporting Center

The Reporting Center provides access to various standardized reports such as the **Monthly Roll Up** (developed by the Program Manager) and an ad-hoc report generator called **Roster Builder**. These robust reporting tools let you view, print, and export your Site's funeral honors information to a Microsoft Excel spreadsheet.

12.1 Roster Reports Using Roster Builder

From the Ribbon Toolbar, you can access Roster Reports in the Reporting Center.



This tool allows the user to build custom reports from data collected in the MFH USAF application.

Five types of roster reports are available. Each type will produce reports of different types.

- **Participants Roster:** The Participants Roster will produce participant-centric, reports. This means that a report can only be generated where the columns (data elements) selected apply to at least one participant. (If the user selects data elements that do not apply to any participants, there will be no resulting report.)
- **Mission Locations:** The Missions-Locations roster will produce mission or location-centric reports.
- Funeral Locations POCs: The Funeral Locations POCs roster will produce reports with information about Funeral Locations and their related POCs.
- Burial Locations POCS: The Funeral Locations POCs roster will produce reports with information about Burial Home Locations and their related POCs.
- **Training Participations:** The Training Participations roster will produce reports with information about participants and their training as it has been recorded in MFH USAF.

After selecting the correct roster report type, you will be able to design a roster report to your specifications.

Subject To Privacy Act of 1974 (PL-93-579). Official Use Only. This application maintains usage statistics for security and soldier privacy protection. Build a Roster Report the way YOU want it 1 See "Tips" for help. Step 1 of 3: Click • icon to view items or "Unfold All" ("Sort A-Z" to view report items in alphabetical order.) Check up to 24 items and click "Submit." Selected items will appear in the report in order of selection.					
MFH Participants Roster	Home Tips (on/off) Uncheck All Unfold All Sort A>Z				
0 columns selected	BURIAL INFO	Your Custom Reports (click on Report Name)			
Submit Columns	FUNERAL INFO	No custom reports found			
	MISSION INFO				
y to the Arcting	PARTICIPANT MISSION INFO				
	• PARTICIPANT PERSONNEL INFO				
	PARTICIPANT SERVICE INFO				

12.1.1 Setting Data Elements

The data elements that you will choose for your report columns are found under broad categories, defined based on the report ype that you selected. For the MFH Participatns Roster, categories include Burial Info, Funeral Info, Mission Info, Participant MIssion Info, Participant Personnel Info, and Participant Service Info.

Tip: You can expand all data elements for all categories by clicking Unfold All. You can display or hide data elements in a single category by clicking the Target button.

12 Reporting Center

Subject To Privacy Act of 1974 (PL-93- Build a Ro Step 1 of 3 Check up Selected ii	 579). Official Use Only. This application maintains usage statist ster Report the way YOU want it ! See "Tips" for help. Click O icon to view items or "Unfold All" ("Sort A-Z" to vie to 24 items and click "Submit." tems will appear in the report in order of selection. 	ics for security and soldier privacy protection. w report items in alphabetical order.)
MFH Participants Roster	Home Tips (on/off) Uncheck All Unfold All Sort A>Z	
0 columns selected Submit Columns	BURIAL INFO Date of Burial Cemetery Name Hours of Burial B.L. Address B.L. City B.L. State B.L. ZIP B.L. Ph. # FUNERAL INFO MISSION INFO PARTICIPANT MISSION INFO	Your Custom Reports (click on Report Name) No custom reports found
AT . Sport Prove	PARTICIPANT PERSONNEL INFO	AT IT AND A TO
	Participant SSN Participant Full Name Address 1 City Participant State Zip Phone	
11 11 11	PARTICIPANT SERVICE INFO	17 18 291

To select a data element to appear as one of your report columns, select the check box to the left of the data element name. You may select up to 24 data elements. As you select a data element, it will appear in the *Set of Columns* box on the left of the screen. Note that the order in which you select the data elements will determine the order in which those data elements will be displayed in the final report. To clear all selected data elements, click **Uncheck All** in the report menu bar; to clear one selected data element, click the checked box and the checkmark will be removed.

Once you have selected the data elements for your report, click the **Submit Columns** button.

5 columns selected									
Submit Columns									
Date of Burial									
Cemetary Name									
Funeral Home Name									
Date of Funeral									
Mission Control #									

12.1.2 Setting Filters And Criteria

The page that is displayed allows you to choose the columns that will be used to order the report and enter criteria that will filter the results of your report.

MFH Participants Roster	Home Tips (on/off)	New Report	Change Selection	Clear All Boxes	Close Lookup Window	
Display 50 rows per page			Run Roster		LOOKUP WINDOW	
Sort ORDER BY COLUMN NAME	COLU	JMN CRITERIA	l III			
Date of Burial			*			
Cemetary Name						
Funeral Home Name						
Date of Funeral			*			
Mission Control #						
			Run Roster			
	Home Tips (on/off)	New Report	Change Selection	Clear All Boxes	Close Lookup Window	

Sort: Click the up and down arrows to reorder the columns of your report. The first column will be the left-most column of the final report.

Order By: Enter the numerical rank for the columns you would like to use to order the report. The number one will be the primary sort order, and the subsequent numbers will be used as secondary and subsequent sort orders. If you sort a report by, for example, Mission Control Number, for the records returned the Mission Control Number will be appear in ascending order.

Column Criteria: Criteria values can be entered to filter the report to only retrieve specific data from the data base. Some general rules are:

Italicized column names allow you to enter partial search criteria. For example, if you enter the letter "B" in the Column Criteria for **Deceased Name**, the resulting report will contain the missions where the Deceased Name begins with B (e.g., Bloom, Brice, etc.).
 Note: You can only have one criteria value for these data elements (e.g., you cannot enter "B" and "C").

• <u>Underlined column names</u> refer to fields that have a present, defined number of values. Click the column name to view a list of the possible values. Click any of the possible values to add one or more to the column criteria.

Tip: If you enter multiple values manually, they must be separated by a comma and there should be no spaces (as in the example "E3,E4,E5.")

Date columns will have both a data-entry field and a drop-down list. You can either enter a date or date range manually or select one of the pre-defined ranges from the drop-down list.
 Tip: Use the drop-down list to see acceptable formatting examples even if you don't want to use one of the pre-defined values.

There are several variables, or tokens, that you can use instead of entering a specific date or date range manually. These variables are particularly helpful if you are designing a report that you will use on a regular basis with a defined time period. (For example, you could enter "from \$StartFY to \$Today" rather than "from 10/01/2011 to 01/03/2012" to see all records this fiscal year to date.) Available variables include:

- \$Today (today)
- \$Yesterday (today-1 day)
- \$NextWeek (today+7 days)
- \$LastWeek (today-7 days)
- \$FirstofMonth (first day of this month)
- \$LastofMonth (last day of this month)
- \$Tomorrow (today+1)
- \$StartFY (Oct 1 of FY)
- \$EndFY (Sep 30 of FY)
- \$StartLastFY (Oct 1 of FY-1)
- \$EndLastFY (Sep 30 of FY-1)

After defining column criteria, you can set the number of records per page (records that will be printed on each page of the report) if you wish to change the default setting (of 50). You may change this number to a maximum of up to 1,000 records per page. Clicking the **Clear all Boxes** link will remove all search criteria previously entered in all Column Criteria boxes. The **Close Lookup Window** link is currently inactive.

12.1.3 Generating The Report

Click the 'Run Roster' button to create your report.

The report pictured in the example that follows, was generated using search criteria to filter the result so that:

• Records are only retrieved where the "Date of Burial" is "From 2008/1/1 to 2009/1/1."

128 rei Columr Date o	cords found n criteria: f Burial= from 2008/01/01 t	to 2009/01/01					
	MFH Participants Roster	Home Tips (on/off)	New Report	Reset search criteria	Full Export	Export this page	×
		See code description in	a lookup wind	low by clicking on corre	sponding colu	ımn name	
	Date of Burial	Cemetary Nam	e	Funeral Home	Name	Date of Funeral	Mission Control #
	1/10/2008 2:00:00 PM F	T RICHARDSON NATIONAL	CEMETERY				AK0801100000
	1/12/2008 1:30:00 PM N	/luldoon COmmunity Asseml	bly Church				AK0801150000
	1/15/2008 11:30:00 AM F	T RICHARDSON NATIONAL	CEMETERY				AK0801150001
	1/17/2008 2:00:00 PM C	UINHAGAK CHURCH					AK0801160000
	1/19/2008 2:00:00 PM E	BAYVIEW CEMETERY					AK0801160001
	1/29/2008 1:00:00 PM E	piscopalian Church					AK0802080002
	1/29/2008 2:00:00 PM U	INALAKLEET CHURCH					AK0802080003
	2/2/2008 1:00:00 PM E	BETHEL CEMETERY					AK0802270000
	2/4/2008 2:00:00 PM H	100PER BAY CHURCH					AK0802080001
	2/6/2008 2:00:00 PM K	ALTAG CHURCH					AK0803040000
	2/7/2008 2:00:00 PM N	IOME RECREATION CENTE	R				AK0802080000
	3/3/2008 2:00:00 PM K	OTLIK CHURCH					AK0803110001
	3/6/2008 1:00:00 PM N	IOME RECREATION CENTE	R				AK0803110000
	3/7/2008 3:30:00 PM S	ELAWIK CHURCH					AK0803110002
	3/9/2008 2:00:00 PM S	ELAWIK CHURCH					AK0803110003

The top left corner of the page lists the total number of records found, the current page number of the report, the sort criteria (Ordered By), and the criteria used to filter the report.

Scrolling to the bottom of the page provides the user with a link to view any additional pages of the report. Also note that as you scroll down the page, the column headings will eventually "float" down.

Many column names are linked to descriptive "lookup" windows that will open additional information in pop-up windows (e.g. State, UIC, Service/VSO, Component/VSO search and selection of data values).

12.1.4 Navigation And Links

Use the links in the report menu bar to perform the following tasks:

MFH Participants Roster | Home | Tips (on/off) | New Report | Reset search criteria | Full Export 🗵 | Export this page 🗵

- Home: Clicking on the "Home" link will return you to your MFH USAF home page.
- **Tips:** Clicking on the "Tips" link provides you with some basic tips for using the report application.
- New Report: Clicking on the "Start New Report" link will return you to the first page of the Roster Report application.
- **Reset Search Criteria:** Clicking on the "Reset Search Criteria" link will take you back to the page where you can reset the sort order of the columns and modify the data values that will filter the results of the report.

- **Full Export:** Clicking on the "Full Export" link will export the entire report into Excel. Once Excel is open, you may save the report to your hard drive.
- **Export this Page:** Clicking on the "Export this Page" link will export only the current page of the report into Excel. Once Excel is open, you may save the report to your hard drive.

12.1.5 Saving A Custom Report

Save your desired criteria and name the resulting report.

View the report your criteria has produced. Enter a name (for this set of criteria) and hit "Save Report" in order to automatically produce data (conforming to this criteria) the next time it is desired.



Your custom reports can be selected (click the name) to produce up-to-date criteria each time you seek this information from Roster Builder.

You can also choose to run the saved report, reset the search criteria, and save as a new report (with a new name.)

12.2 Transfer Missions

Documentation under development.

12.3 Monthly Rollup

The Monthly Rollup report is available at both Site and USAF levels. If you access the report from the USAF reporting center, you will view data for all Sites cumulatively. The Monthly Rollup report allows the user to run a report (selecting start and end month) that will display a monthly summary, a daily summary, and a breakdown of all data contributing to the daily/monthly summary. There are four different ways to view the Monthly Rollup report.

ADOS Participations

Click **Reporting Center**, select **Monthly Rollup**, and click **ADOS Participations**.

	ADOS duties not related to Honorable Transfer Missions and Trainings (as of 5/11/2010)							
CMD .	Mu Commond	Set Fiscal Year	Start Month	End Month				
CIVID :	iviy Command	2010	Oct V	Oct V	Run Coarch			
Date :	12 May,	2010			Kun Search			
Date .	2010		Year : 2009	Year : 2009				

- 88 -Document generated on: 5/2/2012 at 12:26 PM

12 Reporting Center

Here you can choose to view report data from any number of months within a single fiscal year. Select the year, start and end months, and click **Run Search**.

	elected	duty da	ites TIM	IE SPAN	l:								
			2008		2009								
		oct	nov	dec	jan	<u>feb</u>	mar	apr	may	jun	jul	auq	sep
Total applicable duty cost this period:	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Total payable duty count this period: 92	278	857	750	871	850	812	874	802	834	649	759	656	564
Total duty count:		1569	1336	1484	1613	1392	1321	1219	1188	1012	1223	1090	966
154	413												

Select within Fiscal Year

Click Re	porting (Center,	select f	Monthl	y Rollu	p , and c	lick With	nin Fisc	al Year.			
CMD :	My Comm	and	Set Fisca	l Year		Start Mont	h	En	d Month			
Date :	12 Feb, 2	2010	2010			Oct 🚩		0	ct 🚩	R	un Report	
FY:	2009-20	10				Year : 2009)	Ye	ar : 2009			
	N:											
_	2009						2010					
oct	nov	dec	jan	feb	mar	apr	may	jun	jul	aug	sep	

Here you can choose to view report data from any number of months within a single fiscal year. Select the year, start and end months, and click **Run Report**.

(As of 1:00:00 AM today) **Click on Month Name for more information.						
Monthly Summary Report	Oct	TOTAL				
# of Funerals Performed for DMDC Credit	933	933				
# of Funerals Supported without DMDC Credit	26	26				
# of Paid Duties Performed by M-Day Soldiers	1304	1304				
NGPA 2060						
Base Pay/\$50 Allowance	103058.18	103058.18				
Total	103058.18	103058.18				
OMNG 2065						
\$50 Allowance for Retirees	7771.17	7771.17				
Contract Buglers	0	0				
Supplies, Equipment, Communication, Flags, etc.	0	0				
Travel Reimbursment	731.9	731.9				
Total	8503.07	8503.07				
Transportation						
GSA Lease	0	0				
Commercial Lease	0	0				
Total	0	0				

The available rows include:

- **# of Funerals Conducted:** Provides the number of missions conducted by USAF. A mission can be designated as conducted by USAF through the After Action Review.
- **# of Funerals Supported:** Provides the number of missions supported by USAF. A mission can be designated as supported by USAF through the After Action Review.
- Number of Paid Duties Performed by M-Day Soldiers provides the number of duties performed by United States Air Force, Federal Status Airmen
- Base Pay/\$50 Allowance provides the total pay issued for duties performed by United States Air Force, Federal Status Airmen
- Supplies, equipment, communication, flags, etc: provides a dollar figure that includes paid VSO and authorized providers
- **Travel Reimbursement**: Includes the dollar amount paid to all participants in travel reimbursements during the selected period.
- Contract Buglers
- Supplies, Equipment, Communication, Flags, etc.
- GSA Lease
- Commercial Lease

Click the column names to drill the resulting report down by month, day, and finally to a detailed view of each day's activities.

Month:	12						
Day:	9						
Fiscal Year: 2010							
Close All							

MISSIONS PERFORMED FOR DMDC	Open / Close								
Control # Deceased Name	ontrol # Deceased Name Funeral Date Ceme								
AK0912310006 K			12/9/20	09 1:00:00 PM					
MISSIONS SUPPORTED WITHOUT	DMDC C	REDIT		No Records					
Soldiers Participated				Open / Close					
SSN Name	State	Duty St	art Date	Duty Type					
	AK	12/9	/2009	Mission					
Base Pay/\$50 Allowance				Open / Close					
SSN Name		Pay	Pay	Date					
		50.0000	1/7/2010	5.21.16 PM					
STIPEND FOR RETIREES				No Records					
Contract Buglers				Open / Close					
Number of paid Contract Bugle	rs	Amount p	paid Contrac	t Buglers					
PAID VSO AND AUTH. PROVIDERS	5			No Records					
SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, COMMUNIC	CATION,	Flags		Open / Close					
Supplies Equipment Co	mmunio	ation I	Flags	Other					
0 0		0	0	0					
TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT				No Records					
GSA LEASED VEHICLES				No Records					
COMMERCIAL LEASED VEHICLES				No Records					
		ВАСК							

Tip: Click the mission control number to view mission details.

Select within two dates

Click Reporting Center, select Monthly Rollup, and click By Two Dates.

TIME SPAN:			
Start Month: 🔳	End Month:		
Set dates and "Run Report">	to:		Run Report
Expenses indicated in M * Contract Buglers * Supplies, Equipment * GSA Lease * Commercial Lease apply to the last day	onthly Progress , Communicatio of each month	Report such as: n, Flags, etc. of this report.	

Here you can choose to view report data from any number of months across fiscal years. Select the start and end dates, and click **Run Report**.

Monthly summary Report	Jun/09	Jul/09	Aug/09	Sep/09	Oct/09	Nov/09	Dec/09	TOTAL
# of Funerals Performed for DMDC Credit	885	1048	906	811	933	864	958	6405
# of Funerals Supported without DMDC Credit	32	33	41	27	26	30	28	217
# of Paid Duties Performed by M-Day Soldiers	1315	1342	1249	1131	1304	1129	1390	8860
NGPA 2060								
Base Pay/\$50 Allowance	104013.41	105101.19	99267.03	91988.33	103058.18	92223.5	113464.91	709116.55
Total	104013.41	105101.19	99267.03	91988.33	103058.18	92223.5	113464.91	709116.55
OMNG 2065								
\$50 Allowance for Retirees	7550	7600	7800	9559.22	7771.17	5750	6950	52980.39
Contract Buglers	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Supplies, Equipment, Communication, Flags, etc.	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Travel Reimbursment	817.2	1332.4	863.85	810.6	731.9	911.35	392.8	5860.1
Total	8367.2	8932.4	8663.85	10369.82	8503.07	6661.35	7342.8	58840.49
Transportation								
GSA Lease	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Commercial Lease	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Total	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

The available columns include:

- **# of Funerals Conducted:** Provides the number of missions conducted by USAF. A mission can be designated as conducted by USAF through the After Action Review.
- **# of Funerals Supported:** Provides the number of missions supported by USAF. A mission can be designated as supported by USAF through the After Action Review.
- Number of Paid Duties Performed by M-Day Soldiers provides the number of duties performed by United States Air Force, Federal Status Airmen
- Base Pay/\$50 Allowance provides the total pay issued for duties performed by United States Air Force, Federal Status Airmen

- Supplies, equipment, communication, flags, etc: provides a dollar figure that includes paid VSO and authorized providers
- **Travel Reimbursement**: Includes the dollar amount paid to all participants in travel reimbursements during the selected period.
- Contract Buglers
- Supplies, Equipment, Communication, Flags, etc.
- GSA Lease
- Commercial Lease

Click the column names to drill the resulting report down by month, day, and finally to a detailed view of each day's activities.

Month:	12						
Day:	9						
Fiscal Year: 2010							
Close Al	Close All						

MISSIONS PERFORMED FOR DMD	MISSIONS PERFORMED FOR DMDC CREDIT Open / Close					
Control # Deceased Name	ntrol # Deceased Name Funeral Date Cem					
AK0912310006 K			12/9/2	009 1:00:00 PM		
Missions Supported without [OMDC (Credit		No Records		
				Open / Close		
	State	Duty 6	tart Data	Duty Type		
	AK	12/	9/2009	Mission		
BASE DAY (\$50 ALLOWANCE				Open / Close		
		Dave	Dav	Data		
		Pay 50.0000	Pdy 1/7/2010	3:21:18 PM		
STIPEND FOR RETIREES				No Records		
Contract Buglers				Open / Close		
Number of paid Contract Bugle	rs	Amount	paid Contra	t Buglers		
			0			
PAID VSO AND AUTH. PROVIDERS No Records						
SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, COMMUNIC	CATION	, FLAGS	-1	Open/Close		
Supplies Equipment Co	mmun	cation 0	Flags 0	Other 0		
TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT				No Records		
GSA LEASED VEHICLES No Records						
COMMERCIAL LEASED VEHICLES				No Records		
	1	BACK				

Tip: Click the mission control number to view mission details.

12.4 Participants

Three reports are available to help track participant status and needs.

12.4.1 Participant PEC Status Report

Use the Participant PEC Status Report to view how many participants are in each participant status type, including Certification, Course Failure, Dismissed, Graduation, and Re-Certification. Drill down to view the participants in each status type.

- 1. Click Reporting Center, then select Participants, and click Participant PEC Status.
- 2. Define a Start and End Date.
- 3. Click Submit.

The Participant Status report opens.

🛛 Expo	rt to Excel						
Start	2/1/2009		End	2/1/2010			
Date			Date				
Submi							
Total							
Total pa	Total participants for this date range: 4494						
РЕС Туре					Total		
Certifica	tion				<u>896</u>		
Course f	failure				<u>936</u>		
Dismisse	ed				<u>897</u>		
Graduat	ion				<u>920</u>		
Recertifi	cation				<u>845</u>		

Tip: Click the link in the Total column to open a Participant Details report filtered to include all participants in the PEC Type selected for the defined date range.

Tip: Click the Export to Excel button to export the report to Excel.

12.4.2 Recertification Due Report

Use the Recertification Due Report to see how many participants are due to be recertified within the next two months.

1. Click **Reporting Center**, then select **Participants**, and click **Recertification Due**. The Recertification Due report opens.

Export to Excel	Export to Excel					
All types 💽 Filter by PEC type.						
SSN Name	PEC Date	PEC Type	Recertification Due			
	1/20/2008	Certification	2/20/2010			
	11/5/2009	Graduation	2/20/2010			
	2/14/2009	Dismissed	2/20/2010			
	10/6/2009	Certification	2/20/2010			
	4/2/2009	Graduation	2/20/2010			
	12/3/2009	Certification	2/20/2010			
	7/4/2009	Certification	2/20/2010			
	5/6/2009	Graduation	2/20/2010			
	2/12/2009	Recertification	2/20/2010			
	3/6/2009	Graduation	2/20/2010			
	9/1/2009	Graduation	2/20/2010			
	6/30/2009	Graduation	2/20/2010			
	4/29/2009	Course failure	2/20/2010			
	8/30/2009	Graduation	2/20/2010			
	8/22/2009	Graduation	2/20/2010			
	5/2/2009	Certification	2/20/2010			
	2/19/2009	Certification	2/20/2010			
	5/6/2009	Graduation	2/20/2010			
	4/10/2009	Recertification	2/20/2010			
	12/10/2009	Certification	2/20/2010			
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10						

Tip: Click the SSN to open the Participant's Profile Page. Filter Participants by PEC type by selecting a type from the drop-down list.

Tip: Click the Export to Excel button to export the report to Excel.

12.4.3 Participant PEC Details Report

Use the Participant PEC Details Report to view an unfiltered list of all participants in the system with all recorded details.

- 1. Click Reporting Center, then select Participants, and click Participant PEC Details.
- 2. Define a Start and End Date.

3. Click Submit.

The Participant Details report opens.

Export to Exe	cel				
Start 1/1/2009 date		End Date	1/1/2010		
Submit					
SSN	Name		PEC Date	РЕС Туре	
			1/25/2009	Course failure	
			9/17/2009	Course failure	
			11/25/2009	Recertification	
			8/29/2009	Dismissed	
			10/18/2009	Graduation	
			1/9/2009	Dismissed	
			5/21/2009	Course failure	
			8/17/2009	Recertification	
			10/2/2009	Course failure	
			4/16/2009	Graduation	
			5/11/2009	Certification	
			11/16/2009	Recertification	
			9/15/2009	Course failure	
			4/23/2009	Certification	
			7/14/2009	Course failure	
			4/1/2009	Course failure	
			2/14/2009	Certification	
			6/7/2009	Graduation	
			9/3/2009	Dismissed	
			1/10/2009	Certification	
12345678910					

Tip: Click the SSN to open the Participant's Profile Page.

Tip: Click the Export to Excel button to export the report to Excel.

12.5 Attendance

The Attendance report displays how recently the users assigned to your Site have accessed different MFH pages.

12 Reporting Center

	LAST	TIME VISIT	ED BY US	SER			
LEGEND: last day 🕛 last week 🗨	last month 🜗	six mor	iths 争	more	e than six month	ns 🕈 no a	access 🗢
AKO ID	First Name Last Name	Home Page		Duty Rec.	Incompl. Duty Rec.	Hon. Transfers	
		\bigcirc	\bigcirc				
			\bigcirc				
		\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	
		\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	
		\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	Ð	\bigcirc	
			\bigcirc				
		\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	
		\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	
			•	•	•	•	
		\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	
		\odot	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	
		\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	
		\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	
		\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	
		\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	
		0	\bigcirc	\bigcirc	0	0	

13 Training Center

Training Center
 Edit Training Records

The Training Center is accessed in order to add a participant to a general training session that is **not** associated with any one mission. This module provides a way to track the readiness and availability of both new and seasoned participants. Some of the current features of this module include:

- Multiple search options to find (and populate text boxes with information for) existing participants or current service members for whom the user wishes to schedule training. (See <u>Locate an Existing Participant</u> on page 101.)
- Input participant training data not associated with a specific mission. (See Input Training on page 102.)
- Add new participants to the list of existing participants. (See <u>Add a New Participant</u> on page 102.)
- Edit/delete existing training records. (See Edit/Delete Existing Training Records on page 106.)
- Add new training sites. (See Add New Training Site on page 104.)
- Add travel expenses. (See Add Travel Expenses on page 104.)
- Work with participant training data and travel expenses. (See Edit/Delete Existing Training Records on page 106.)

To input training that is associated with a mission, the user can access the Mission Information Page and then select the personnel for whom they wish to enter/edit training information. (See <u>Schedule</u> <u>Training</u> on next page for more information.) If at least one participant is assigned to the mission, the Scheduled Participants page is displayed.

13.1 Schedule Training

Click Training Center on the MFH USAF Ribbon Toolbar and click Schedule Training.

TRAINING DUTY DETAILS (NGPA Funds FY2009-2010) Close Search Panel This training session is not associated with a mission Close Search Panel and could not be scheduled as Honorable Transfer training Close Search Panel					
tabase Search Pa	nel				
Existing participants:	۲	Participants in CA 💿			*
By Name: (CA ARNG and MFH)	0	* <u>Rules of component</u>	assignment for A	ARNG:	
By SSN (ARNG,USAR)	0				
SSN	Last Name	First Name	Middle Name		
Address1	Address2	City	ZIP		
Unit of Assignme	nt:	UIC:			
Grade: Se	rvice/VSO Cor	nonent / VSO Organizati			
Grade. Se		v voo organizati	511		
TRAINING SCHED	ULE:				
Select Training Lo	cation State: CA	and Name			Add New Site
Address line 1		Address line 2		Comments:	
City		ZIP	_		
			Map Link 🔮		V
Training Date (us	e calendar) Tra	ining Time Duration (Hrs.)			
		0 🗸		SAVE	Exit this page
For multiple train	ings select new date :	and/or new training locati	on and click SAVE		

Complete the following tasks on this page.

- Either Locate an Existing Participant on next page or Add a New Participant on page 102.
- Then Input Training on page 102.
- Optionally, Add New Training Site on page 104 or Add Travel Expenses on page 104.

Tip: The Duty Records link allows the user to view training sessions and associated travel expenses. See Duty Records on page 54 for more information.

13.1.1 Locate An Existing Participant

Find and populate text boxes with participant information. (Search in List, Search by Name, or Search by SSN.)

From the Training Center, users have the option of performing several types of searches. The **Close/Open Search** button toggles the display of the search function.

Database Search Panel	
Existing participants:	Participants 💿 🔽 🗸 🗸 🗸 🗸
By Name: (CA ARNG and O MFH)	** <u>Rules of component assignment for ARNG:</u>
By SSN (ARNG,USAR)	

Use one of the following methods to locate a participant.

Select an Existing Participant

- 1. Click the Existing Participants radio button on the left side of the page.
- 2. Select a participant from the **Participants in Site** drop-down list.

Search by Name

- 1. Click the **Search by Name** radio button on the left side of the page.
- 2. Type the first two (2) or more characters of the participant's last name into the text box and click the **GO** button. The first ten names matching your criteria will be displayed. If there are page numbers at the bottom of the list, you may click them to page through the list of names.
- 3. Click the name to be added to the List of Assigned Participants at the bottom of the page.
- 4. Click the **Close** button to return to the full search box.

Search by SSN

1. Click the **By SSN** radio button on the left side of the page.

2. Enter the full nine-digit SSN (without dashes) in the SSN box and click the **Go** button. If the record is found, the participant's information will be added to the List of Assigned Participants box at the bottom of the page.

NATIONAL GUARD	Existing Participants
	1
12345678	

- 3. Select the name of the participant you are looking for.
- 4. Click the **Close** button to close the search box.

13.1.2 Add A New Participant

Add new participant to the list of existing funeral honors participants by closing the search function (**Close Search**) and typing in the participant's name, SSN, and other required information, as well as the training schedule.

Note: When adding a new participant, be sure to Select Service/VSO.

- 1. Use the drop-down to select from a list of Service Branches or VSO types.
- 2. Click the appropriate selection **and** Select Component/VSO Organization.
- 3. Use the drop-down to select from a list of Components or VSO Organizations. The list displayed will be directly related to your selection of Service or VSO.
- 4. For a participant to get paid, you must select one of the USAF list items if the Service is Army, or one of the VSO organizations if the participant is a VSO member.
- 5. Click **Save** and **Done** before navigating away from the page. **Tip:** To exit without saving, click **Done**.

13.1.3 Input Training

Here, MFH USAF provides users with the ability to input participant training data that is **NOT associated** with a mission.

Tip: To input training associated with a mission, see <u>Schedule Training</u> on page 45.

First, input a new participant or locate the participant through the Training Center's search options so that data on his identity is populated.

SSN	Last Name	First Name ELIZABETH	Middle Name
Address1	Address2	City WOODE	ZIP BRIDGE 22191
Unit of Assignment: JFHQ-VA(-DET)		UIC: 8BJAA	
Grade: Service/ E5 Army	VSO Compo Reserv	nent / VSO Organization	

Then, enter information in the area labeled **Training Schedule**, as indicated below...

TRAINING SCHEDULE:					
Select Training Location State:	VA 🔽	and Name		💌 🔼	ld New Site
Address line 1		Address line 2		Comments:	
City		ZIP	_		
			Map Link 🔮		×
Training Date (use calendar)	Trainin	g Time Duration (Hrs.)			
		0 💌		SAVE	Exit this page
For multiple trainings select new date and/or new training location and click SAVE.					

- 1. Select Training Location State. The drop down automatically defaults to the user state.
- Name. Select training location name by clicking the Name drop down and making your selection; the Name and Address information for the selected training location will be entered. If your training location is not listed, click Add New Site. (See <u>Add New Training Site</u> on next page for more information.)
- 3. Training Date (use calendar.) Select the dates for training by clicking the calendar icon. After the calendar is displayed, click the date for training. The calendar will close and the date will be entered in the Training Date box.
- Training Time Duration (Hrs.) Use the Training Time Duration drop down to select the duration of the training. Then click the Save button.
 The training information will then be displayed in a box at the bottom of the page. If the information is incorrect, click Remove. The training information will be deleted and you may reenter it.

Tip: If you need to add information regarding travel and/or miscellaneous expenses for the training, click **Add Travel Expenses**. Follow the instructions <u>Add Travel Expenses</u> on page 43.

- 5. To input multiple training events for the same participant, after clicking the **Save** button, repeat this process of selecting a date and duration for each training you wish to schedule.
- 6. When you have added all of the training dates for the participant, click **Done**.

13.1.4 Add New Training Site

Note: In addition to adding a new site on-the-fly here, you can add training sites from the Management Center link on the MFH USAF Ribbon Toolbar. See <u>Managing Training Sites</u> on page 74 for more information.

TRAINING SCHEDULE:	
Select Training Location State: VA 💌 and Nan	ne Add New Site
Add new Training Site to the VA List	
Enter Site Name	
Address line 1	Address line 2
City	ZIP
Cancel	Done

Click **Add New Site**. Use the text box labeled **Enter Site Name** to type in the name (Unit Name or Site Name) of a new training location. If typing in the name of an existing or previously inactive site/unit name, any edits the user makes to the address information will be saved.

Note: Each training site/location must have a unique name (you cannot have two locations with the same name, even if each has a unique address.)

Click the **Done** button and the information for the new site will populate the boxes in the Training Schedule fields below (as well as appear in the Training Site drop-down list). You may now select a participant, date, and schedule a training session at the new site.

13.1.5 Add Travel Expenses

After adding and saving a Training Session the Add Travel Expenses section will display.

13 Training Center

TRAINING SCHEDULE:	
Select Training Location State: VA 💌 and Name	1ST BN (IN) 183RD REGT (RTI)
Address line 1	Address line 2
BLDG 1315 FT PICKETT	
City	ZIP
BLACKSTONE	23824 Map Link 🕥
Training Date (use calendar) Training Time Durati	ion (Hrs.)
9/6/2005 🔳 8 💌	SAVE
For multiple trainings select new date and/or new traini	ing location and click SAVE.
Training Date	Training Duration Location Name
Add Travel Expenses 9/6/2005 12:00:00 /	AM 8 1ST BN (IN) 183RD REGT (RTI) Remove
	Exit this page

Click Add Travel Expenses and the Travel Panel will be displayed.

Travel	Training Date	Training Duration	Location Name	Remove Record
Add Travel Expenses	2/17/2010 12:00:00 AM	12	118TH MAINT CO	Remove
2/17/2010 12:00:00 A	AM			
🔍 Training Related Travel		Travel	×	
	EXPENSES			
Travel	Expenses Open: Travel	From To		

Click the **Open: Travel From ... To** button.

Travel	Training Date Training	Duration Location Name	Remove Record			
Add Travel Expenses	2/17/2010 12:00:00 AM 12	118TH MAINT CO	Remove			
2/17/2010 12:00:00 AM						
	ü Training Related Travel	×				
EXPENSES						
	Travel Expense	open: Travel From T	0			
TRAVEL From (city,						
state):						
TRAVEL To (city,		Total Miles				
state):		Total Miles:	J			
Milage Rate (\$\$):	0.5500					
	Add/Update Cancel					

Completing the information in the **Open Travel From...To** entry boxes is **MANDATORY**. Enter TRAVEL From (City, State) and TRAVEL To (City, State). Enter the number of miles traveled (may be entered as 0; if the expense is for fares, tolls, or misc. As opposed to mileage, the city and state names and a mileage entry is **mandatory** in order to process for payment.

Click **Add/Update** to save the information or click **Cancel** to close the panel without saving any changes.

An addition to the form opens.				
FARES/TOLLS (\$\$): 0	MISC. (\$\$): 0	Total		
Expense:				
Get and Save Totals				

If entering dollar amounts for fares, tolls, or miscellaneous expenses, use the **Fares/Tolls** and **MISC** expense boxes. Do Not enter anything in the Total Expense box. Click **Get and Save Totals** (total expenses are automatically calculated when user clicks **Get and Save Totals**.) If expenses are incorrect, click **Cancel** to delete and begin again. If expenses are correct, click **Done**.

13.2 Edit/Delete Existing Training Records

Depending on your user privileges, you may be able to edit and/or delete (from the visible listing) previously scheduled training sessions.

- 1. Click Training Center on the MFH USAF Ribbon Toolbar, and click **Edit Training Records** and the linked page will open, displaying participant/SSN for whom training has been scheduled (from the previous month forward.)
- Select the participant for whom you would like to edit/delete a scheduled training session by clicking the linked SSN.

The screen displays information on the participant, training schedule, and travel expenses.

3. Perform the desired edit/deletion, and click **Save**.

SSN	Last Name	First Name	Middle Nam	e	
	A	JASON	ASA		
Address1	A	ddress2	City	ZIP	
			HOWARD CITY	49329	
Unit of Ass	ignment:	UIC:	Grad	e:	
BTRY C 1 B	N 119 FA REAR	PT1CD	Bî		
Service/¥S	0	Component / VSC) Organization		
Army	×	National Guard Fe	deral Status 💌		
TRAINING	SCHEDULE:				
Location	3RD BN (ADA) 183RD RE	GT (RTI) 🛛 🔽 🛛 SR	D BN (ADA) 183R	D REGT (RTI)	Comments:
Address		City	ZIP		
BLDG 1311	FT PICKETT	BLACKSTONE	23824		
Training Da	te (use calendar)	Training Time D	uration (Hrs.)		
13 February	, 2010	2 💌	•	SAVE	
			-		
MANAGE TRAVEL EXPENSES					
Training Date Travel From Travel To Miles \$\$ Travel \$\$ Fare/Toll \$\$ Misc					
Travel Expenses Open: Travel From To					

14 Help Center

Click the Help Center link in the MFH USAF Tool Bar to view and/or print the User Guide and other instructional documentation.
15 Calendar

A calendar feature is available in MFH USAF that displays the missions scheduled, both future and past, in your Site.

1. Click **Calendar** in the Ribbon Toolbar.

The Calendar opens, defaulted to the current month.



- Change the view as necessary.
 Tip: Click the arrows to scroll forward or back in time. Change the view to Month, Week, or Day. Notice that the each calendar item is proceeded by a time and followed by a (B) or an (F) for Burial or Funeral.
- 3. To see or edit any record details, simply click the record. The Mission Information page opens. (See <u>Mission Information Page</u>.)

16 User Management Tool (UMT)

The User Management tool is an Administrative tool used to grant user access and assign permissions in MFH USAF.

16.1 Requesting Access To MFH USAF

To request access to MFH USAF, click the MFH USAF main screen. Once there, click the **Request Access** button. Next, you will see a form asking what level of access you require and why. Then, click **Submit**. After the request for access has been submitted, the application administrators will review-and either approve or disapprove--the request.

You access to the application will depend on you user role, which is determined by your functional role and level of responsibility. If you are granted administrative privileges, you will be able to If they require access to the User Management tool, to approve other user's access requests. (To learn how to use the User Management Tool as an Administrator, see <u>User Management Tool</u>.)

16.2 Accessing The User Management Tool

To access the User Management tool, click the **User Management Admin** icon located in the MFH USAF Ribbon Menu.



16.3 Understanding MFH USAF User Roles

All users in MFH USAF are assigned user roles to control access to the application. A user role determines what a user can create, read, update, and delete within MFH USAF.

16.4 Managing User Access

The User Management tool's main purpose is to give an authorized user the ability to grant access and permissions to other users. In some cases, the user can only change another user's permissions and cannot grant them access to MFH USAF.

16.4.1 Granting A User Access

The actual process of granting a user access is accomplished by filtering the main screen to see only the users with an Access Requested status.

1.	Click the Person's View Details icon. 卷 The Actions Detail screen appears.
	Actions Edit Permissions Edit Profile Action History Applications for
	Select an action for this request.
	Date Requested: 20110104 0915 hours
	Reason Requested: test
	O Approve O Deny
	Submit

2. Review the user's reason for requesting access.

Note: If the reason supplied is insufficient, you can deny the users's request and inform them that they must supply a more detailed reason in order to be approved. **Tip:** You can also click **Edit Profile** to review or edit the user's requested command level before approving or denying the request.

- Choose via radio button the action desired: Approve or Deny.
 If you choose approve, the list of available roles approve.
 Note: The available roles will differ depending on the user's position and function. It is
 extremely important to maintain the security and integrity of the application that you assign
 each user an appropriate role.
- Select the user's assigned role from the drop-down list.
 A list of permissions available to that role appear, with the default permissions for the role selected.
- 5. Modify the default permissions, if desired.
- 6. Click the **Submit** button to save your changes.

	Success
>	This request has been approved.

16.4.1.1 Applications For User.Name

The Applications for User.Name tab lists the actions that have been taken on the user's account. It displays four columns of information: Application, Current State, Last Request Date, and Last Request Reason.

- Application The name of the application the user has requested access to.
- Current State The current status of their access to the application.
- Last Request Date Last date the user requested access.
- Last Request Reason The last reason the user listed for requesting access to GIMS.

16.4.2 Denying A User Access

1. Select the **Deny** radio button.

The Reason for Denial text box opens.

Action Details for Darshana.Somalwar	×
Actions Edit Permissions Edit Profile Action History Applications for Darshana.Somelwar	
Select an action for this request.	
O Approve 💿 Deny	
Reason for denial:	
	1
Submit	

- 2. Enter reason for the denial.
- 3. Click Submit.

The user's request will be denied and they will not have access to MFH USAF.

The Action Details screen from this point has the same tabs as explained under View Details with one exception when it comes to the Edit Permissions tab. The Edit Permissions tab will tell the Admin that they must select a Role for the User, before any permissions can be applied.



16.5 User Management Tool Main Screen

The User Management tool's main screen consists of three tabs: **Profiles, Reporting** and **Application Statistics**. The main screen also has User Name search field, Search and Reset buttons, Filter Profiles by drop down menu, Page Size. The gird shows eight columns: User Name, Request Date, First Name, Last Name, Command Hierarchy Type, Command Level, Command Value and UIC.

Protite Reporting Application Statistics									
Us	Uaer Name: Search Search Search								
Fit	Tarrpolas by: Access Reported + Page See 25 +								
	User Name								
		Request Date	First Name	Last Name	Command Hierarchy Type	Command Level	Command Value	UIC	
2		Apr. 11, 2011 at 3:13 PM	AKO.FirstName	AKO.LastName					
2		Aug. 24, 2011 at 11:05 AM	AKO.FirstName	AKO.LastName					
2		Feb. 8, 2011 at 3:51 PM	AK0.FirstName	AKO.LastName					
\$	2	Feb. 8, 2011 at 9:07 AM	AKO.FirstName	AKO.LastName					
\$		Jul. 6, 2011 at 3:38 PM	AKO.FirstName	AKO.LastName					
\$		Dec. 22, 2010 at 9:07 AM	AKO.FirstName	AKO.LastName					
\$		Dec. 22, 2010 at 9:14 AM	AKO.FirstName	AKO.LastName					
\$		Jun. 22, 2011 at 12:30 PM	AKO.FirstName	AKO.LastName					
2		Jul. 5, 2011 at 4:11 PM	AKO.FirstName	AKO.LastName					

16.5.1 Profiles

When the user first enters User Management they will be on the Profiles tab. This is the screen that the majority of users will interact with. It consists of the following:

- User Name Search Field Type in a user's name and click the Search button to locate that user.
- Search Button Performs a search for the name typed into the User Name search field.
- **Reset Button** Removes all text from the User Name search field.
- Filter Profiles by: Allows the Admin to display other users by the following six categories:
 - Access Requested Users that have requested access to the application that this User management tool applies to.
 - Access Denied Users who access was not approved for the application.
 - Request Approved Users who access was approved.
 - Access Revoked Users who have had their access removed.
 - Upgrade Requested Users who have requested their permissions be set at a higher level.
 - All Users in all the above categories.
- Page Size Determines the number of rows to display. User can select 25, 50, 100 or All.
- View Details Icon Opens the Actions Detail screen.
- User Name Displays the name of a user or someone requesting access.
- **Status** (Only visible when the **All** filter is chosen) The status of the user (displays Requested, Approved, Denied or Revoked).
- Request Date The date the user requested access to the application.
- First Name The user's first name.
- Last Name The user's last name.
- **Command Hierarchy Type** Displays the user's command hierarchy type.
- **Command Level** Displays at what command level the user can view data.
- Command Value Displays at what level the user is located.
- **UIC** The Unit Identification Code of the user.

Profiles	Reporting	Application Statistics		
User Nam	ie:		Search	Reset
Filter profi	les by: 🛛 🗛	coess Requested v Page Size: 25 v		

16.5.2 Reporting

The Reporting tab displays a User Account Summary and a User Permission Summary.

16.5.2.1 User Account Summary

The User Account Summary displays the count for the following user statuses:

- Access Requested Displays all users who have requested access to the application, but have not been approved or denied.
- **Request Denied** Displays all users whose request for access has been denied.
- Request Approved Displays all users whose request for access has been approved.

rofiles	Reporting	Application Statistics					
				7			
User	Accounts Sun	umary User Permis	sion Summary				
				-		User Accounts S	ummary
						Status	Count
						Access requested	<u>8</u>
						Request denied	1
						Request approved	<u>17</u>
					L		

You can click the count to open a report of all users in each category. From the report, click the **View Details** icon to open the user details.

16.5.2.2 User Permission Summary

The User Permissions Summary is a quick way of seeing which users have specific permissions.

You can click the "And" or "Or" radio buttons depending how you want the permissions to display. Selecting "And" will only display users who have all of the selected permissions . Selecting "Or" will display users who have any of the selected permissions.

16.5.3 Application Statistics

The Application Statistics tab displays statistics about the application being managed for the following categories:

- Application Logs Displays the Application Name, the User, and the Date Accessed.
- Usage Displays the User, Number of Logins, User Logins, Other Application Logins, and User Logins/Total Logins. User Logins are represented in a burgundy color and Total Logins User Logins in green.
- **Monthly Usage** Displayed in a graph with the months on the horizontal axis and the count on the vertical axis.
- **Daly Usage** Displayed in a graph with the day on the horizontal axis and the count on the vertical axis. The user can choose the month and week to display from the calendar.
- User State Monthly Displays the number of users in a specific category that can be selected from a drop down list with the label of: Filter By. The categories are: Upgrade Requested, Access Requested, Request Denied, Request Approved, and Access Revoked. These are displayed in a graph with the Month on the horizontal axis and the count on the vertical axis.

Profiles	Reporting	Application Statistics
Appl	ication Logs	
Usag	e	
Mon	thly Usage	
Daily	Usage	
<u>User</u>	State Monthly	4

16.6 View Details

To view the details of a user click the View Details icon at the beginning of a row. $\stackrel{\$}{\sim}$

The Actions Detail screen will appear. If the displayed user's account required revoking, this is where the Admin would perform that function by clicking the Revoke Access check box.

The Admin can also view other user information by choosing one of the available tabs. The Admin lands on the <u>Actions Tab</u> when opening the Action Details window.

The other four tabs available are:

- Edit Permissions
- Edit Profile
- Action History
- Applications for "User's Name"

16.6.1 Actions

The Actions tab is the default tab displayed when the Admin clicks on the **View Details** icon to view the Action Details screen. The options on this screen vary based on what state of request the user is in.

If the user is requesting access, the only option here is to approve or deny access.

Actions Edit Permissions Edit Profile Action History Applications for	rytd
Select an action for this request.	
O Approve O Deny	
Submit	

If a user already has access, then the only option is to revoke their access to the application.

Actions Edit Permissions Edit Profile Action History Applications

Revoke Access

If a user already has access and is requesting an upgrade, the only option is to approve or deny the specific permissions the user is requesting.

Actions Edit Permissions Edit Profile Action History	Applications for deepa.eriyat
Select an action for this request.	
O Approve O Deny	
Reason for Upgrade:	
Default Non-default Not in Role	
Current Permissions:	Requested Permissions:
Allow Entering Contract Information	Access Reports
Allow entering Remarks	Allow approval Terminate Contract
Allow Printing and Uploading of Bonus Addendum	Allow Complete Contracts
Allow requesting Control Numbers	Allow Confirmation of Validation of Bonus Control Numbers
Allow requesting Control Numbers	
Allow Uploading and Viewing Documents	
✓ Chat	V
Submit	

16.6.2 Edit Permissions

The Edit Permissions tab is where the Admin assigns the user's role and permissions for MFH USAF.

The Admin can also apply or remove a user's permissions. The permissions are dependent on the role. Some roles will have certain permissions while others will not.

These permissions are also color coded and the legend is displayed above the permissions box.

After making your changes, click **Update Permissions** to save your changes. If you want to return the user's role and permissions to its original settings, click the **Reset** button.

Action Details for bill.lively1	×
Actions Edit Permissions Edit Profile Action History Applications for bill lively1	
Role: SuperEditor 💌	
Edit Permissions: Default Non-default Not in Role	
Admin: Receive Notifications	
Granting permissions to users requesting access	
Update Permission	ns Reset

16.6.3 Edit Profile

Under the Edit Profile tab you can set the command level for each user. If you click the **Select Command** link the Command Picker opens and you can select the user's command level using a series of drop down menus to identify the Report Sequence Code to use.

	Report Sequence Code
Army National Guard	
State	ALL 🔻
MACOM/TC/JFHQ	
Division	•
Brigade	•
Battalion	•
Company	•
JPC	•

Once you have chosen the user's command, **Set** to save your changes.

16.6.4 Action History

The Action History tab displays what actions have been taken on a user's account by any Admin. This screen displays five columns of information: Date/Time, Action Type, Action Result, Acted On By, and Reason.

- **Date/Time** The date and time the last action was taken towards the user.
- Action Type The type of action taken.
- Action Result The results of the action.
- Acted On By Who took the action.
- **Reason** The reason for the action.

Action Details for bitLively									
Actions Edit Permissions Edit Profile Action History Applications for bill lively									
Date/Time	Action Type	Action Result	Acted On By	Reason					
Oct. 21, 2010 at 10:29 AM	Request access	Access requested		I need access for testing.					
Oct. 21, 2010 at 3:50 PM	Approve request	Request approved		I need access for testing.					